
CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL
RHONDDA CYNON TAF

COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

GWŶS I GYFARFOD O'R CYNGOR

C.Hanagan 
Cyfarwyddwr Materion Cyfathrebu a Phennaeth Dros Dro’r Gwasanaethau 
Llywodraethol
Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Rhondda Cynon Taf 
Y Pafiliynau 
Parc Hen Lofa'r Cambrian 
Cwm Clydach CF40 2XX

Dolen gyswllt: Hannah Williams - Uned Busnes y Cyngor - Gwasanaethau 
Llywodraethol  (01443 424062) 

DYMA WŶS I CHI i gyfarfod o Pwyllgor ARCHWILIO yn cael ei gynnal yn 
Siambr y Cyngor, Y Pafiliynau, Parc Hen Lofa'r Cambrian, Cwm Clydach, 
Tonypandy CF40 2XX ar Dydd LLUN, 5ED TACHWEDD, 2018 am 5.00 PM.

AGENDA
Tudalennau

1. DATGAN BUDDIANT 
Derbyn datganiadau o fuddiannau personol gan Aelodau, yn unol â gofynion y 
Cod Ymddygiad.

Noder:
1. Mae gofyn i Aelodau ddatgan rhif a phwnc yr agendwm mae eu 

buddiant yn ymwneud ag ef a mynegi natur y buddiant personol 
hwnnw; a

2. Lle bo Aelodau'n ymneilltuo o'r cyfarfod o ganlyniad i ddatgelu buddiant 
sy'n rhagfarnu, mae rhaid iddyn nhw roi gwybod i'r Cadeirydd pan 
fyddan nhw'n gadael.

2. COFNODION 
Derbyn cofnodion o gyfarfod blaenorol y Pwyllgor Archwilio a gafodd ei gynnal 
ar 17 Medi 2018.

3 - 6
3. PENODI IS-GADEIRYDD 

Penodi Is-gadeirydd ar gyfer y Pwyllgor Archwilio ar gyfer Blwyddyn y Cyngor 
2018/2019. 



4. SWYDDOGAETH YSWIRIANT Y CYNGOR 
Derbyn trosolwg o Swyddogaeth Yswiriant y Cyngor gan roi sylw, yn benodol, 
ar sut mae'n gefn i drefniadau Rheoli Risg y Cyngor. 

7 - 18
5. SWYDDOGAETH RHEOLI TRYSORDY Y CYNGOR 

Derbyn trosolwg o'r trefniadau llywodraethu mewn perthynas â Swyddogaeth 
Rheoli Trysordy'r Cyngor. 

19 - 28
6. MENTER TWYLL GENEDLAETHOL 

Derbyn trosolwg o Fenter Twyll Genedlaethol, ynghyd â'r newyddion 
diweddaraf am waith Carfan Twyll y Cyngor. 

29 - 40
7. CYFLAWNIAD ARCHWILIO MEWNOL 

41 - 56
8. ASEINIADAU ARCHWILIO MEWNOL TERFYNOL 

57 - 130
9. MATERION BRYS 

Trafod unrhyw faterion sydd, yn ôl doethineb y Cadeirydd, yn faterion brys yng 
ngoleuni amgylchiadau arbennig.

Cyfarwyddwr Materion Cyfathrebu a Phennaeth Dros Dro’r Gwasanaethau 
Llywodraethol
Cylchreliad:-

Y Cynghorwyr Bwrdeistref Sirol:
Y Cynghorydd G Caple, Y Cynghorydd A Cox, Y Cynghorydd J Cullwick, 
Y Cynghorydd M Fidler-Jones, Y Cynghorydd M Adams, Y Cynghorydd H Boggis, 
Y Cynghorydd R Smith, Y Cynghorydd R Yeo, Y Cynghorydd M Powell, 
Y Cynghorydd G Davies, Councillor K Jones, Y Cynghorydd  M Norris, 
Y Cynghorydd E Webster, Y Cynghorydd J Elliott and Y Cynghorydd Owen-Jones

Aelod Lleyg – Mr R. Hull



 RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

Minutes of the meeting of the Audit Committee held on Monday, 17th September 
2018 at 5 p.m. at the County Borough Council Offices, The Pavilions, Clydach Vale.

PRESENT

County Borough Councillors

  
L. M.  Adams M. Fidler Jones
G. Caple M. Norris
A. Cox M. Powell
G. R. Davies E. Webster
J. Cullwick R. Yeo

OTHER MEMBERS IN ATTENDANCE

County Borough Councillor G. Jones

OFFICERS

Mr M. Crumbie - Head of Internal Audit & Procurement Development Programmes
Mr P. Griffiths – Service Director, Performance & Improvement

Mrs S. Davies – Head of Finance, Education and Financial Reporting
Mr. C. B. Jones –Director, Legal & Democratic Services

Mr R. Hull – Lay Member

WALES AUDIT OFFICE

Mr Mike Jones – Financial Audit Manager
Mr R. Harries – Engagement Lead

12.  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from County Borough Councillors H. Boggis, 
K. Jones, S. Pickering, R. W. Smith and G. Thomas.  

13.  DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS

The Head of Internal Audit & Procurement Development Programmes declared a 
personal interest in relation to Agenda Item 7 – Finalised Internal Audit 
Assignments – “My wife works at Cardinal Newman Roman Catholic 
Comprehensive School as the Bursar”.

Tudalen 3

Agendwm 2



14.  MINUTES

RESOLVED – to approve as an accurate record the minutes of the meeting of the 
Audit Committee held on the 12th July 2018 subject to the minute reading ‘the 
appointment of Vice Chair would now be referred to Full Council’.

15.  ELECTION OF VICE-CHAIR OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR 2018-19

       Following consideration of the previous Minutes (12th July 2018, Minute No. 14 
above refers) it was RESOLVED to defer consideration of the election of the Vice-
Chair to the next appropriate Full Council.

16.  OVERVIEW OF THE ARRANGEMENTS IN PLACE TO SUPPORT SCHOOLS

      The Head of Internal Audit & Procurement Development Programmes presented 
an overview of the Internal Audit work that has taken place in respect of schools 
over the past two financial years. A summary of the outcomes of the work 
undertaken was presented to Members as part of the presentation.

      Following the review of the work completed by Internal Audit, the Head of Finance, 
Education & Financial Reporting outlined the range of support and training in place 
for staff and Governors within schools that included mandatory induction governor 
training and a Service Level Agreement between the Council and Schools to 
support governing bodies in their role. 

The Head of Finance, Education & Financial Reporting also outlined the range of 
support in place in respect of financial administration and provided Members with 
a brief introduction and electronic link to an online bilingual resource that has been 
developed by the Council to assist school based staff when undertaking their role 
in respect of annual budget setting. Members were informed that a further video 
was being developed to assist with the monitoring of budgets.

The Committee acknowledged the range of training available to schools and asked 
whether there is a process in place to ascertain which schools have not taken part 
in scheduled training events. The Head of Finance, Education & Financial 
Reporting confirmed that registers of attendees are maintained but no formal 
mechanism is in place to review non attendance. In addition, Members suggested 
that when issues classed as High Priority by Internal Audit are identified in future, 
that the Internal Audit Service requests details of training received by the relevant 
school based staff and this be reported as part of the final audit report. 

       Following discussion it was RESOLVED to:

1. Acknowledge the arrangements in place to support schools. 

Tudalen 4



2. In the event of future ‘high’ priority recommendations being made by Internal 
Audit, the details of any training received by members of staff at the school be 
included within the final report.

17.  THE ROLE OF AUDIT COMMITTEE - INTERNAL AUDIT & EXTERNAL AUDIT 
INCORPORATING THE DRAFT WORK PLAN FOR 2018/19 

The Head of Internal Audit & Procurement Development Programmes presented 
an overview of the report and this was accompanied by a presentation from the 
Wales Audit Office’s Engagement Lead. 

The Head of Internal Audit & Procurement Development Programmes requested 
the Committee to consider the draft Audit Committee Work Plan for the 2018/19 
municipal year in terms of whether it would support the delivery of the 
Committee’s Terms of Reference having regard to the CIPFA Practical Guidance 
Note 2018 which was also attached to the report.

       Following consideration of the report it was RESOLVED to:

1. Acknowledge the contents of the report; and
2. Endorse the draft Work Plan for the 2018/19 municipal year. 

18.   INTERNAL AUDIT PERFORMANCE 2018/19

The Head of Internal Audit & Procurement Development Programmes presented 
the report of the Group Director, Corporate & Frontline Services in respect of the 
Internal Audit Service between 1st April 2018 and 4th September 2018.

The Internal Audit Plan was attached to the report at Appendix 1 and included 
the status of each audit review, the quarter in which the audit is/was planned to 
commence and incorporated the detailed performance information for each 
Internal Audit Review. Appendix 2 to the report provided a summary of the status 
of all recommendations made by the Internal Audit Service, grouped under the 
relevant service of the Council. It was confirmed that all had been implemented.

It was reported that, as at the 17th September 2018, 29% of the Plan had been 
completed to report stage. 

Following consideration of the report it was RESOLVED to receive and 
acknowledge the information presented.

Tudalen 5



19.   FINALISED AUDIT ASSIGNMENTS

    The Head of Internal Audit & Procurement Development Programmes introduced 
the report of the Group Director, Corporate & Frontline Services in respect of the 
audit assignments completed between 1st July 2018 and 4th September 2018:-

 Cardinal Newman Roman Catholic Comprehensive School;
 Cwmbach Community Primary School;
 Darrenlas Primary School; and
 Post 16 Planning & Funding 2017/18.

    The Committee was reminded that the Head of Internal Audit & Procurement 
Development Programmes had previously declared a personal interest in respect 
of the audit assignment for Cardinal Newman Roman Catholic Comprehensive 
School (Minute No.13 noted earlier refers). Members were informed how the conflict 
of interest was managed during the course of the audit with the Head of Internal 
Audit & Procurement Development Programmes having no role / responsibility in 
respect of the audit being delivered.

A Member requested that the introductory narrative be made clearer within Internal 
Audit reports for specifics schools by adding in ‘language’ when describing ‘English 
Faith’ schools. 

In addition, another member requested clarity around the link between the school 
and the delivery of 6th form provision at Coleg y Cymoedd. The Head of Internal 
Audit & Procurement Development Programmes indicated that feedback will be 
provided at the next Committee.

     Following consideration of the outcomes of the assignments it was RESOLVED:- 

1. To receive and acknowledge the information contained within the report.
2. To receive feedback at the next Audit Committee meeting on the 6th form 

provision arrangements at Cardinal Newman Roman Catholic Comprehensive 
School. 

 R.HULL

CHAIR  
The meeting closed at 6.30 p.m.

Tudalen 6



Rhondda Cynon Taf Council  

Audit Committee – 5th November

Overview of the Council’s 

Insurance functionT
udalen 7

A
gendw

m
 4



• The role of Audit Committee

• Why do we have an Insurance Service / Function?

• Overview of the Insurance Function

• How claims are processed and how data is used 

• An example - Highways 

Areas to cover

T
udalen 8



The role of Audit Committee

• Terms of reference – ‘To review, scrutinise and issue reports 

and recommendations on the appropriateness of the 

Authority’s risk management, internal control and corporate 

governance arrangements…’

• Responsibilities of Audit Committee include gaining an 

understanding in respect of what arrangements are in place to 

manage risks 

– i.e. the arrangements in place to mitigate risk (e.g. Insurance). 

T
udalen 9



Why do we have an Insurance Service 

/ Function?

To help the Council manage risk

• When deciding how to manage risks, the Council’s risk management 

arrangements identify the following risk mitigation strategies available:

• Controlling risk involves a process of reducing the impact and / or likelihood 

of the risk occurring. 

• The Insurance Service enables the management of risk in two 

ways..........TREAT (by reducing future likelihood & current impact) & 

TRANSFER (by reducing the impact)

T
udalen 10



Overview of the Insurance Function –

Main Types of Policies

• Motor

• To protect the LA against RTA 
claims arising from driving in 
the performance of our duties

Types of Policies / types of cover that we have.....and why:

• Casualty Policy , namely 

Employer and Public liability

• To protect the LA against 

claims made for injuries 

sustained by employees or 

Members of the public 

• Fidelity Guarantee 

• Technically the only policy we 

are legally obliged to take 

out! This policy covers the LA 

against embezzlement by 

senior officers 

• Property

• To protect the full 
property portfolio 
against specified perils

T
udalen 11



Overview of the Insurance Function – is it 

effective? 

• Trend of our premiums over the past 10 years show a general theme of 

reduced annual premiums paid or alternatively, premiums held at 

existing rates, whilst in a hard insurance market . 

• Our brokers consider the Council is effective in the management of its 

insurable risks and this is reflected in our claims experience and the 

terms obtained from insurers. 

• Good track record of successfully defending liability claims due to using 

insurance data to inform service areas (TREAT risks). In addition, good 

controls in place, such as Highways inspections, to enable us to defend 

claims.

T
udalen 12



How claims are processed:

• The Insurance team handle most PL , MV and Property claims internally.

• It is important to note that all claims handling is governed in the first 

instance by established civil law and therefore all claims must be 

handled within the relevant legal framework and established case law. 

• Examples of various Acts which govern our actions are the Highways Act 

1980 , The Occupiers Liability Acts 1957 & 84 and the Road Traffic Act 

1988.

• Upon receipt each claim is risk assessed, looking for indications of 

potential fraud, and an estimate allocated to give an indication of its 

value for the purpose of reserves. 

• Specialist claims handlers used when required.

T
udalen 13



How claims are processed (cntd):

• Good relationships and communication channels with key service 

areas have been established and maintained over the years.

• Once a report is received , decision on liability made quickly based on 

case law. 

• Feedback is given to service areas, as losses will trigger remedial 

action to prevent a reoccurrence.

• Claims handling process is audited by RCT’s Internal Audit department, 

Wales Audit Office and our Insurers. This is done to ensure that we 

adhere to agreed procedures within the law.

T
udalen 14



How we use our data

• Example – Highways

• How do we use claim data to TREAT the potential risk of future claims?

– Regular liaison meetings with Highways Colleagues where we share 

information.

• Do we have any hotspots?

– No. Data currently indicates no claim hotspots, however on the 

occasion that one is identified, data is shared with the department 

concerned.

– Remedial action is taken to rectify the problem as quickly as possible.

• We’ve worked since RCT’s inception to use claim information to inform 

service areas of issues arising  – Highways for example.

T
udalen 15



An example - Highways

• There is a trend of reducing levels of claims – key contributory factors: 

– Close and regular liaison meetings between the Insurance Service and 

Council Services 

– Introducing evidence based systems (e.g. inspections) which can be 

defended in court (where required) 

– On-going investment in the highway infrastructure: 

§ Since 2011/12 £38M with a further £23.5M in next 3 years

§ Performance Indicator information for the ‘% of roads in overall 

poor condition’ demonstrating long trend of improvement: 
q A roads: 2010/11 = 16.2% and 2017/18 = 5.2% 

q B roads: 2010/11 = 15.2% and 2017/18 = 6.23%

§ Raising awareness of on-going investment with the Council’s and 

Courts

• Even in times of austerity, local authorities are not allowed to use the 

argument of reduced funding in Highways cases as specific case law forbids it 

(Wilkinson)

T
udalen 16



DISCUSSION POINT FOR AUDIT COMMITTEE

• Is there further information required by Audit 

Committee as part of informing understanding of the 

control environment in place? 

• Any further questions…

T
udalen 17



T
udalen w

ag



Rhondda Cynon Taf Council  

Audit Committee - 5th November

Treasury Management 

ControlsT
udalen 19

A
gendw

m
 5



In addition to the core functions of an audit committee. 

The revised guidance states that audit committees can 

provide added value by overseeing the arrangements in 

place in respect of an organisation’s treasury 

management arrangements.

CIPFA – Audit Committee, Practical Guidance 

for Police and Local Authorities 2018

Role of Audit Committee with regards to 

Treasury ManagementT
udalen 20



Areas to cover

1. Definition of Treasury Management

2. Relevant Regulations and Codes of Practice

3. Reporting Requirements

4. Controls over payments

T
udalen 21



1. Definition of Treasury Management

CIFPA Definition

The management of a local authority’s cash flows, its borrowings and its 

investments, the management of the associated risks, and the pursuit of the 

optimum performance or return consistent with those risks

Borrowing and investments 

Interest 

Received

Average 

Cash 

Balance

Return on 

Investments

Benchmark 

Return

£M £M % %

Cash Balances 0.036 14.692 0.24 0.21

Borrowing 31st March 2018 Total Interest Average Interest

£M £M %

PWLB 109.297 5.257 4.81

Banks LOBOS 31.000 1.395 4.50

Banks  Fixed Term 54.500 2.818 5.08

Local Authorities 76.000 0.239 0.53

Total 270.797 9.709 4.02

T
udalen 22



Relevant Regulations and Codes of 

Practice
Local Government Act 2003
Section 15(1) & 24 of the Local Government Act 2003 requires a local authority "…to have regard (a) to 

such guidance as Welsh Ministers may issue, and (b) to such other guidance as Welsh Ministers may by 
regulations specify…" 

The Local Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) 
(Wales) Regulations 2003 
Requires authorities to have regard to the CIPFA publications below. 

CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management
Development and maintenance of clear objectives for Treasury Management activities

CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital Finance in local 
Authorities
All authorities in the UK are required to have regard to the Prudential Code when setting 
limits to the level of their affordable borrowing under section 3(5) of the 2003 Act (in 
England and Wales). The Code requires local authorities to determine that capital 
expenditure and investment decisions are affordable, prudent and sustainable, and to set 
limits on the amount they can afford to borrow in the context of wider capital planning. 

Welsh Government Statutory Guidance on Local 
Government Investments
Link : WG Guidance

The guidance on investments of this document is issued under section 15(1)(a) in the LG 
2003 Act. 

T
udalen 23



Indicators

CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management
• Maturity Structure of Borrowing 

• Investments over 1 year

• Interest Rate exposure 

CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local 
Authorities
• Capital Expenditure

• CFR

• Authorised limit for debt

• Operational Boundary for Debt

• Actual External Debt

• Financing Cost to Net Revenue Stream

T
udalen 24



Welsh Government Statutory Guidance on Local 

Government Investments

• Investment Risk
– Security, Liquidity, Yield, in that order

– RCT CBC Strategy
• Other Public Bodies and DMO

– Credit Ratings 

– Limits

• Treasury Management Advisors

• Treasury Management Training

• Investment of monies borrowed in advance of 
need

T
udalen 25



Reporting Requirements

1. Treasury Management Strategy Treasury Management Strategy 2018/19

• Approved by Council

• Prior to Financial Year it relates to

• Approve Investment Strategy
• Post 2008

• Criteria

• To approve limits / Prudential Indicators

2. Mid Year Review Mid Yr Review 2017/18

• Presented to Council

3. Full Year Review Full Yr Review 17/18

• Presented to Council

All subject to scrutiny – Finance and Performance Scrutiny Committee

Treasury Management performance is published quarterly within the Council’s 

quarterly performance report to Cabinet and Finance and Performance Scrutiny 

Committee.

T
udalen 26



Controls over Payments

• CHAPS

– Same day payment

– Internet banking

– Segregation of Duties
• 3 stages

• Independent system administration

• Independent bank reconciliation

• Authorisation

– Standard stationery

• Validate payee

– Independent check

• Change of bank details

– Independent check

T
udalen 27



Discussion point for Audit Committee

• Is there further information required by Audit 

Committee as part of informing understanding of the 

control environment in place? 

• Any further questions…

T
udalen 28



RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2018/19

AUDIT COMMITTEE

5TH NOVEMBER 2018

ANTI-FRAUD, BRIBERY & CORRUPTION PROGRESS REPORT FOR 2018/19

REPORT OF THE GROUP DIRECTOR, CORPORATE & FRONTLINE SERVICES

Author: Ian Traylor – Head of Pensions, Payroll & Payments - 01443 680591

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

The purpose of this report is to outline the progress made to date against the 
Anti-Fraud, Bribery & Corruption work programme for 2018/19.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

It is recommended that Members:

2.1 Note and review the outcomes of the anti-fraud work progress during 
2018/19;

2.2 Receive updates at future meetings in accordance with the Terms of 
Reference of the Committee.

3. BACKGROUND

3.1 In November 2017, members considered and approved the Anti-Fraud, 
Bribery and Corruption Strategy.

3.2 As detailed within the Strategy, update reports will be prepared and provided 
to Audit Committee at relevant intervals in order to assist the Committee to 
fulfil its terms of reference.

3.3 Included at appendix A is a progress report on the 2018/19 Work Programme 
for members’ consideration.

4.

4.1

EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS

There are no equality and engagement implications associated with this 
report

Tudalen 29

Agendwm 6



5.

5.1

6.

6.1

 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no financial implications associated with this report.

 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

The Accounts and Audit (Wales) Regulations 2014 require the maintenance 
of an adequate and effective system of internal audit of the Council’s 
accounting records and control systems.  This is essential to the prevention 
and detection of fraud and corruption and is a key element of the Chief 
Finance Officer’s statutory duties as contained in section 151 of the Local 
Government Act 1972.

**********************************

Tudalen 30



LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT, 1972 

as amended by 

THE ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT, 1985 

RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 

5th November 2018

Report of the Group Director, Corporate & Frontline Services 
Author: Ian Traylor – Head of Pensions, Payroll & Payments

Item 6  

6. Anti-Fraud, Bribery & Corruption progress report for 
2018/19 

Contact Officer: Ian Traylor
Head of Pensions, Payroll & Payments
Bronwydd House
Porth
CF39 9DL 
Tel. No. (01443) 680591

Tudalen 31



APPENDIX A

Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough 
Council

Anti-Fraud, Bribery & Corruption 
progress report for 2018/19

DATE: October 2018

Tudalen 32



Anti-Fraud, Bribery & Corruption Report 2018/19

Introduction

This report provides Audit Committee with an update of activities carried out in 
relation to the prevention, detection and investigation of potential fraud during 
2018/19.  A plan of targeted activity for 2018/19 and the associated progress is 
included at Appendix 1.  

1. Headline Activities 

1.1 Strategy / Planning

1.1.1 Committee approval of the updated Anti-Fraud, Bribery & Corruption 
Policy, reinforcing the Council’s zero tolerance approach to fraud and 
corruption.

1.1.2 Joint working with the Council’s Internal Audit Team in the review and 
completion of the Council’s Anti-Fraud, Bribery & Corruption Risk 
Assessment, which helps to target and prioritise areas of activity.  

1.1.3 Developed an Anti-Fraud, Bribery & Corruption Plan for 2018/19 
(Appendix 1), based on shared experience, and associated risk factors.

1.1.4 Developed an internal communication strategy, to help drive the proactive 
preventative and awareness raising measures across the organisation with 
the aim to maintain and promote an anti-fraud culture across all Council 
services. 

1.1.5 Developed a central ‘hub’ for the collation of fraud referrals from all 
potential sources, e.g. members of the public (telephony/on-line reporting) 
and other Council departments (e.g. Housing Benefit Section).  An 
accessible Council Internet and Intranet presence. 

1.1.6 Supporting corporate policy documents including the Corporate Risk 
Management Strategy, Code of Conduct, Disciplinary Policy, 
Whistleblowing Policy and Financial Procedure Rules.

1.2 Prevention / Awareness

1.2.1 Active membership of the National Fraud Intelligence Bureau, sharing 
fraud experience, alerts and best practice across relevant Council Officers. 

1.2.2 Issued a Council wide alert to all educational establishments regarding an 
attempt to defraud a school (included as Appendix 2).

1.2.3 Urgently alerted service users of potential ‘Mandate’ fraud risks following a 
referral from South Wales Police in relation to an attempt against another 
Welsh Council.

Tudalen 33



1.2.4 Provision of bespoke and specific risk assessments and fraud preventative 
measures to individual Council sections/departments.

1.2.5 To provide an awareness session with the Council’s Audit Committee 
around the National Fraud Initiative (NFI) data sharing and investigation 
process.

1.3 Review / Investigation

1.3.1 Coordinate the National Fraud Initiative (Cabinet Office) data sharing 
exercises across Council systems and support follow-up investigations. 

1.3.2 New member added to the team to support the provision of a single and 
specific point of contact and referral to the Department for Work and 
Pensions Fraud and Error Service (FES). 

1.3.3 Provide a single and specific point of contact for data provision and 
sharing to internal and external requestors (e.g. South Wales Police, 
HMRC, other Council departments such as Private Sector Housing). 

1.3.4 Collaborative work with the DWP’s FES team on linked national benefit 
and Council Tax Reduction scheme investigations.

1.3.5 Investigation of fraud and/or irregularity within the Revenues arena (e.g. 
Council Tax discounts/exemptions).

1.3.6 Investigation of fraud and/or irregularity within the Council Tax Reduction 
scheme.

1.3.7 Participation in ‘data-matching’ exercises such as Council Tax ‘Single 
Person Discount’ reviews.

1.3.8 Assessment and review, as necessary, of any corporate fraud referrals. 

2. Referrals and Outcomes 2018/19

2.1 Referrals to the Corporate Fraud Team are received from employees, 
members of the public, external agencies (e.g. HMRC, DWP), through the 
online fraud facility, whistleblowing facility or telephone/letter directly to 
the team.  They are initially assessed to determine whether any 
investigatory action is appropriate.   

Table 1 - Fraud Referrals 2018/19

Referral Stream

2018-19 On-line Other Total

Total 
(to 29th October 2018) 183 169 352

Tudalen 34



2.2 The vast majority of referrals received above i.e. 332 relate to financial 
fraud against the Revenues and Benefit system, and any including DWP 
paid benefits benefit / income support system and accordingly are 
forwarded to the DWP (FES) team for investigation.  The top referral 
reason is in respect of suspicions around inappropriately obtaining a 
benefit through non-declaration of parties living together.

2.3 Following the transfer of responsibility for investigating Housing Benefit 
fraud into DWP Fraud and Error Service (FES), DWP has recently 
developed a suite of management information that will allow the Council to 
monitor the progress of referrals made and the outcomes achieved.

Outcomes 2017/18

Table 2: DWP (FES) Quarters available at reporting date:

Quarter 4 Data January - 
March 2018

Local Service 
Investigation

Local Service 
Compliance

Total cases*

Referrals 10 18 31
Outcomes 6 27 53
Positive Outcomes 3 10 13
Admin Penalty 1 1
Prosecutions 31 1
*The MI set out in the above table is a snap-shot of a quarter and will never balance exactly with the dates the 
referral was sent. The total cases data also includes data for other areas within FES, for example organised fraud 
so does not necessarily add up to the totals of investigations and compliance activities.

Key:
Referrals The total number of HB fraud referrals received by DWP in the quarter as a 

result of HB processing.
Outcomes Number of cases with an outcome recorded in the quarter.
Positive 
Outcomes  

Number of cases with an outcome recorded in the quarter. Includes all 
outcome categories listed in 'Outcomes' except for 'No Result'

Ad Pens  Number of cases with an outcome of 'Admin Penalty' recorded in the 
quarter.

Prosecutions Number of cases with an outcome of 'Prosecution' recorded in the quarter.

Local Service Investigation – The ‘criminal’ investigatory arm of the DWP’s FES 
Local Service Compliance – The ‘non-criminal’ investigatory arm of the DWP’s FES

Table 3: Corporate Fraud Investigatory Outcomes to date:

Corporate Fraud Cause Action 

Regeneration and 
Planning (Grant 
awards)

Applied for financial assistance, 
concerns around the supporting 
information were referred to the 
Fraud team.   

When interrogated the 
organisation withdrew their 
application for a grant of 
£37k.

Tudalen 35



Corporate Fraud Cause Action 

Council Tax – 
discount/exemption 
fraud

Attempt at tax evasion by failing to 
disclose resident at a property within 
RCT that was receiving an exemption 
from council tax.

Discounts amounting to 
£1,878.07 were removed 
and the proper council tax 
charges are now applied 
and being collected.

HB/CTB Undeclared capital/savings resulting 
in a fraudulent overpayment in 
excess of £30k.

Case set for trial at Cardiff 
CC on the 6/11/18. POCA 
action to be included.

Parking Permits A salon owner and her employee 
falsely applied for parking permits, 
claiming their salon to be the place of 
their residence, thus denying genuine 
residents the permits in an area of 
limited parking. 

Their permits were 
immediately revoked 
following the matter being 
referred to the Fraud Team.

Note: there are a small number of on-going investigations which will be reported to Audit 
Committee following their conclusion.

3. Concluding Comments

3.1 Audit Committee approval of the updated Anti-Fraud, Bribery and 
Corruption Strategy in November 2017 has reinforced the Council’s 
commitment and zero tolerance approach towards fraudulent activity. 

3.2 Progress of the Anti-Fraud, Bribery & Corruption work programme for 
2018/19 will ensure the Council continues to operate within an effective 
anti-fraud culture across the organisation, with resilient preventive 
measures capable of identifying and addressing new threats.    

Tudalen 36



Appendix 1
Anti-Fraud, Bribery & Corruption Plan 2018/19

 In addition to the on-going activities, key liaison and collaborative work already undertaken, the Corporate Fraud Team will look to:

Activity Explanation How we intend to do it Progress

Increased awareness 
of the role of the 
Corporate Fraud 
Team 

To raise awareness of the team and the role 
they undertake and support they provide.

Payroll inserts as well as 
engagement with senior 
management to promote fraud 
awareness, reporting methods, 
sharing of best practice and 
internal control. Link with Human 
Resources around the Induction of 
new employees.

Payroll inserts complete. 
Ongoing work continues with 
engagement with senior 
management.

A staff survey is to be 
undertaken during November 
2018 to ascertain the levels of 
awareness of staff in reporting 
instances of fraud.

Review and 
completion of the 
Council’s Fraud Risk 
assessment.

To provide assistance to the Audit team in the 
continued risk assessment of all Council areas. 
Targeting the limited resource against areas of 
greatest risk (financial and /or reputational) / 
opportunity.

High level assessment of internal 
control using shared experience, 
civil/criminal procedural knowledge 
and fraud expertise.

Ongoing

Training (Fraud 
Awareness)

A more in-depth and focussed training package 
for specific sections or departments designed 
around the role of the department and the 
internal and external risks they face.

Target delivery due to potential 
risks established from the risk 
assessment, shared intelligence or 
by Service request. 

Ongoing

Intervention As informed by the risk assessment, work with 
the following Service Areas (supporting Internal 
Audit), around reviewing the existing internal 
control environment.  

 Licensing
 Private Sector Housing (Grant awards)

In conjunction with the Internal 
Audit team, a qualified fraud 
investigating officer will visit, 
interview staff, scrutinise and 
examine documents and 
procedures to strengthen areas of 
potential risk and promote a 
culture of prevention and 
detection. 

In Progress

T
udalen 37



Activity Explanation How we intend to do it Progress

Investigation (reactive) Investigate other internal fraud/irregularity, 
these could include;

 Employee frauds
 Social Care (Personal Budgeting/Direct 

Payments)
 Grant awards
 Pensions

Use the qualified fraud 
investigators currently employed to 
investigate and report as 
appropriate.
Support from Internal Audit and 
Human Resources as required.

A number of enquiries in 
progress 

‘Fighting Fraud & 
Corruption’ locally

To ensure that all items contained on the 
‘Checklist’ (ref: Appendix 3 of the ‘Anti-Fraud, 
Bribery & Corruption Strategy’) are considered, 
measured and implemented. 

In conjunction with the Internal 
Audit team.

Complete

NFI Data Sharing 
Exercise

Data analysis across the following service 
areas:

 Payroll
 Creditors
 Debtors
 Pensions
 Housing Benefit
 Council Tax
 

Provision of data and comparative 
analysis with other public sector 
records, with follow-up 
investigation (repeated every 2 
years)

 Fraud, error, overpayments 
and excess reductions are 
identified.

 To take appropriate action 
against offenders. 

National bi-annual exercise 
commenced- 8/10/18. Data 
being uploaded for cross-
matching. Output due- 
February 2019.

NFI awareness session held 
with the Council’s Audit 
Committee.

Joint collaborative 
investigation with 
DWP

Participate in the joint working arrangements 
with DWP (investigators and DWP legal 
resources) on linked national benefit and 
Council Tax Reduction scheme investigations

Sharing information and expertise, 
to ensure that collectively welfare 
benefit and CTRS are resourced in 
the most efficient and effective 
manner. 

Official rollout for joint working 
will commence on- 1st April 
2019 for RCT and all other 
Welsh LA’s.

Investigate  suspected 
Council Tax frauds

Utilise internal and external data matching 
products to identify potential discrepancies in 
Single Person Discounts and other Council Tax 
discounts, disregards and exemptions.

Recover single person discounts 
‘incorrectly’ claimed.

Recover other disregards and 
discounts ‘incorrectly’ claimed.

Ongoing. Datatank ‘Single 
Person Discount’ to Credit 
Reference Agency data 
matching exercise underway

T
udalen 38



Appendix 2

RCT Corporate Fraud Team

FRAUD ALERT
The Council has recently prevented an attempt to de-fraud school funds. The 
attempt was made via a fake school email address, requesting a change to the 
school bank account details; this is known as ‘Mandate Fraud’. The Council’s internal 
control arrangements in respect of bank detail changes and vigilance of the Council’s 
Central Creditors Team prevented this attempt.

Through our networks, we are also aware of a similar attempt having been made 
against a school at a neighbouring Council during this same period.

The overriding message is to be VIGILANT and thoroughly check that any email 
address or letterhead that you are dealing with is genuine and any noticeable and 
unexplained differences in quality, font size or type of text are acted upon. Whilst this 
is particularly important in respect of a request to change bank account details, this 
is not the only channel that fraudsters target.   

Furthermore, please read the following advice from the Council’s Corporate Fraud 
Team:

Advice to help prevent this type of fraud

 Ensure that the control of school email accounts and the network is secure; 
fraudsters will attempt to intercept and use genuine correspondence to 
support their activity;

 Secure and restrict access to all financial documents at the school; 
 Always verify requests for changes to financial arrangements with the 

organisation directly using established contact details you have on file.  The 
Council’s Central Creditors Team will facilitate this control on behalf of all non-
chequebook schools;

 If you are concerned about the source of a call, hang up and call them back 
using established contact details you have on file;

 Check your bank statements carefully and in a timely manner, for any 
unauthorised payments;

 Report any suspicious or suspected fraudulent activity to the Council’s 
Corporate Fraud Team, who will investigate on your behalf and share 
intelligence across the Public Sector National Fraud Network.

If you have any questions in relation to this alert, please contact the Council’s 
Corporate Fraud Team:
Bronwydd
Porth
CF39 9DL
Telephone: (01443) 680508, Email: Fraud@rctcbc.gov.uk

Tudalen 39



Tudalen wag



RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2018/19

AUDIT COMMITTEE

5TH NOVEMBER 2018

INTERNAL AUDIT PERFORMANCE 2018/19

REPORT OF THE GROUP DIRECTOR, CORPORATE & FRONTLINE 
SERVICES

Author: Marc Crumbie (Head of Internal Audit & Procurement Development 
Programmes)

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1 This report provides the performance information in respect of the 
Internal Audit Service between 5th September 2018 and 26th October 
2018.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

It is recommended that Members:

2.1 Review the information contained within the report and identify whether 
there are any areas where specific issues are of concern.

2.2 Consider what comments and recommendations, if any, they wish to 
make.

3. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

3.1 To help ensure that Audit Committee monitors the performance of the 
Council’s Internal Audit Service, in accordance with its Terms of 
Reference.

4. BACKGROUND

4.1 The Audit Committee Terms of Reference (Point F) requires it ‘To 
receive reports on the performance of the Internal Audit Service 
throughout the year particularly in relation to matters of financial probity 
and corporate governance’.

Tudalen 41

Agendwm 7



4.2 In line with this requirement Appendix 1 sets out the Internal Audit Plan 
for 2018/19 and includes the status of each audit, the quarter in which 
the audit is/was planned to commence and incorporates the detailed 
performance information for each audit.

4.3 The Internal Audit Plan currently includes 79 individual audit 
assignments and, as at 26th October 2018, 44% of the Plan had been 
completed to report stage. The detailed breakdown of the status of 
each review is provided in Appendix 1 and is summarised as follows:

Status No. Of 
Audits

Final Reports Issued 15

Draft Reports Issued 20

Fieldwork Complete 3

Audits In Progress 2

Audits Not Yet Started ('Planned') 39

Total: 79

4.4 Appendix 2 provides a summary of the status of all recommendations 
made by the Internal Audit Service, grouped under the relevant service 
of the Council. A verbal update in respect of the status of the 
outstanding recommendations shown in Appendix 2 will be provided at 
the meeting.

5. EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS

There are no equality and diversity implications as a result of the 
recommendations set out in the report. 

6. CONSULTATION 

There are no consultation implications as a result of the 
recommendations set out in the report. 

7. FINANCIAL IMPLICATION(S)

There are no financial implications as a result of the recommendations 
set out in the report. 

Tudalen 42



8. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS OR LEGISLATION CONSIDERED 

8.1 The provision of regular information in respect of the Council’s Internal 
Audit Service supports the Council in demonstrating compliance with 
the Accounts and Audit (Wales) (Amendment) Regulations 2018.

8.2 Regulation 7 (Internal Audit) of Part 3 of the 2018 Regulations directs 
that: “A relevant body must maintain an adequate and effective system 
of internal audit of its accounting records and of its system of internal 
control.”

9. LINKS TO CORPORATE AND NATIONAL PRIORITIES AND THE 
WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS ACT.

THE COUNCIL’S CORPORATE PLAN PRIORITIES 
9.1 The work of Internal Audit aims to support the delivery of the priorities 

contained within the Council’s Corporate Plan – The Way Ahead, in 
particular ‘Living Within Our Means’ through ensuring that appropriate 
internal controls are in place to effectively manage resources. 

WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS ACT
9.2 The Sustainable Development Principles, in particular Prevention, can 

be applied to the systematic reviews undertaken in order to provide 
assurance that risks to the achievement of objectives are being 
managed.

10. CONCLUSION

10.1 Monitoring the performance of Internal Audit is a key responsibility for 
Audit Committee. This report provides Audit Committee with detailed 
information with which the performance of the Service can be reviewed 
and scrutinised.

Other Information:-

Relevant Scrutiny Committee
Not applicable.

Contact Officer – Marc Crumbie

Tudalen 43



LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972

AS AMENDED BY

THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985

RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

AUDIT COMMITTEE

5th November 2018

INTERNAL AUDIT PERFORMANCE 2018/19

REPORT OF THE GROUP DIRECTOR, CORPORATE & FRONTLINE 
SERVICES
Author: Marc Crumbie (Head of Internal Audit & Procurement Development 
Programmes)

Item: 7

Background Papers

None.

Officer to contact: Marc Crumbie

Tudalen 44



Appendix 1 - Monitoring the Internal Audit Plan 2018/19

 

Pr
io

rit
y

Pl
an

ne
d 

Q
tr

St
at

us

St
ar

t F
ie

ld
w

or
k

Fi
ni

sh
 F

ie
ld

w
or

k

D
ra

ft 
R

ep
or

t I
ss

ue
d

D
ay

s 
be

tw
ee

n 
en

di
ng

 fi
el

dw
or

k 
&

 
is

su
in

g 
dr

af
t r

ep
or

t

M
an

ag
em

en
t

R
es

po
ns

es

Ti
m

el
in

es
s 

of
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

R
es

po
ns

e

Fi
na

l
R

ep
or

t

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

re
sp

on
se

 to
 is

su
in

g 
fin

al
 re

po
rt

CHIEF EXECUTIVE

HUMAN RESOURCES

RECRUITMENT - PRE 
EMPLOYMENT 
CHECKS

High QTR 3 Planned    0  0  0

SICKNESS ABSENCE 
MANAGEMENT - 
SCHOOLS

High QTR 3 Planned    0  0  0

LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES

CASE MANAGEMENT Medium QTR 3 Planned    0  0  0

REGENERATION & PLANNING

HOUSING GRANTS High QTR 2 Draft 
Report 31/08/2018 26/09/2018 05/10/2018 9  0  0

COMMUNITY 
INFRASTRUCTURE 
LEVY

High QTR 2 In 
Progress 01/10/2018   0  0  0

HOMELESSNESS 
GRANT High QTR 1 Final 

Report 04/06/2018 31/07/2018 31/07/2018 0 06/08/2018 6 06/08/2018 0

T
udalen 45



 

Pr
io

rit
y

Pl
an

ne
d 

Q
tr

St
at

us

St
ar

t F
ie

ld
w

or
k

Fi
ni

sh
 F

ie
ld

w
or

k

D
ra

ft 
R

ep
or

t I
ss

ue
d

D
ay

s 
be

tw
ee

n 
en

di
ng

 fi
el

dw
or

k 
&

 
is

su
in

g 
dr

af
t r

ep
or

t

M
an

ag
em

en
t

R
es

po
ns

es

Ti
m

el
in

es
s 

of
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

R
es

po
ns

e

Fi
na

l
R

ep
or

t

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

re
sp

on
se

 to
 is

su
in

g 
fin

al
 re

po
rt

COMMUNITY & CHILDREN'S SERVICES

CHILDREN'S SERVICES

PAYMENTS TO 
FOSTER CARERS Medium QTR 2 Fieldwork 

Complete 15/06/2018 15/10/2018  0  0  0

CONTACT SERVICE Medium QTR 3 Planned    0  0  0

ADOPTION SUPPORT 
PAYMENTS High QTR 1 Draft 

Report 04/12/2017 22/06/2018 29/06/2018 7 0  0

YOUTH OFFENDING 
SERVICE Medium QTR 3 Planned    0  0  0

CONTRACT 
MANAGEMENT - 
PLACEMENTS

High QTR 4 Planned    0  0  0

ADULT SERVICES

DIRECT PAYMENTS High QTR 3 Planned    0  0  0

THE REVIEW TEAM Medium QTR 4 Planned    0  0  0

THE PANEL PROCESS High QTR 2 Draft 
Report 26/04/2018 19/10/2018 26/10/2018 7  0  0

SUPPORTED LIVING High QTR 3 In 
Progress 15/10/2018   0  0  0

T
udalen 46



 

Pr
io

rit
y

Pl
an

ne
d 

Q
tr

St
at

us

St
ar

t F
ie

ld
w

or
k

Fi
ni

sh
 F

ie
ld

w
or

k

D
ra

ft 
R

ep
or

t I
ss

ue
d

D
ay

s 
be

tw
ee

n 
en

di
ng

 fi
el

dw
or

k 
&

 
is

su
in

g 
dr

af
t r

ep
or

t

M
an

ag
em

en
t

R
es

po
ns

es

Ti
m

el
in

es
s 

of
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

R
es

po
ns

e

Fi
na

l
R

ep
or

t

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

re
sp

on
se

 to
 is

su
in

g 
fin

al
 re

po
rt

PUBLIC HEALTH, PROTECTION & COMMUNITY SERVICES

REGISTRATION 
SERVICES Low QTR 3 Fieldwork 

Complete 25/09/2018 05/10/2018  0  0  0

LLWYDCOED 
CREMATORIUM Low QTR 2 Draft 

Report 09/08/2018 14/08/2018 06/09/2018 23 19/10/2018 43  0

GLYNTAFF 
CREMATORIUM Low QTR 2 Draft 

Report 12/09/2018 26/09/2018 04/10/2018 8 19/10/2018 15  0

ENGAGEMENT, 
INTERVENTION & 
PREVENTION

High QTR 3 Planned    0  0  0

BROKER SERVICE High QTR 3 Planned    0  0  0

CORPORATE & FRONTLINE SERVICES

IT

DISASTER RECOVERY 
- FOLLOW UP High QTR 3 Planned    0  0  0

CORPORATE ESTATES & PROCUREMENT

LEGIONELLA 
MANAGEMENT High QTR 1 Draft 

Report 09/05/2018 27/09/2018 15/10/2018 18  0  0

21ST CENTURY 
SCHOOLS - CAPITAL High QTR 3 Planned    0  0  0

T
udalen 47



 

Pr
io

rit
y

Pl
an

ne
d 

Q
tr

St
at

us

St
ar

t F
ie

ld
w

or
k

Fi
ni

sh
 F

ie
ld

w
or

k

D
ra

ft 
R

ep
or

t I
ss

ue
d

D
ay

s 
be

tw
ee

n 
en

di
ng

 fi
el

dw
or

k 
&

 
is

su
in

g 
dr

af
t r

ep
or

t

M
an

ag
em

en
t

R
es

po
ns

es

Ti
m

el
in

es
s 

of
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

R
es

po
ns

e

Fi
na

l
R

ep
or

t

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

re
sp

on
se

 to
 is

su
in

g 
fin

al
 re

po
rt

PROJECT

ENERGY 
MANAGEMENT High QTR 2 Draft 

Report 20/08/2018 16/10/2018 26/10/2018 10  0  0

FINANCIAL SERVICES

GENERAL LEDGER High QTR 3 Planned    0  0  0

TAXATION High QTR 3 Planned    0  0  0

ADMINISTRATION OF 
TRUST FUNDS Low QTR 3 Final 

Report 01/10/2018 08/10/2018 09/10/2018 1 09/10/2018 0 09/10/2018 0

TREASURY 
MANAGEMENT High QTR 3 Planned    0  0  0

CREDITORS High QTR 1 Final 
Report 16/02/2018 30/03/2018 16/05/2018 47 22/06/2018 37 29/06/2018 7

PENSIONS High QTR 1 Draft 
Report 14/05/2018 28/08/2018 06/09/2018 9  0  0

INCOME, DEBTORS & 
DEBT RECOVERY High QTR 1 Draft 

Report 15/03/2018 31/05/2018 29/06/2018 29  0  0

HIGHWAYS & STREETCARE

WASTE SERVICES High QTR 4 Planned    0  0  0

T
udalen 48



 

Pr
io

rit
y

Pl
an

ne
d 

Q
tr

St
at

us

St
ar

t F
ie

ld
w

or
k

Fi
ni

sh
 F

ie
ld

w
or

k

D
ra

ft 
R

ep
or

t I
ss

ue
d

D
ay

s 
be

tw
ee

n 
en

di
ng

 fi
el

dw
or

k 
&

 
is

su
in

g 
dr

af
t r

ep
or

t

M
an

ag
em

en
t

R
es

po
ns

es

Ti
m

el
in

es
s 

of
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

R
es

po
ns

e

Fi
na

l
R

ep
or

t

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

re
sp

on
se

 to
 is

su
in

g 
fin

al
 re

po
rt

HIGHWAYS - CAPITAL 
PROGRAMME High QTR 4 Planned    0  0  0

EDUCATION & LIFELONG LEARNING

MIDDLE SCHOOLS

YSGOL LANHARI 
FOLLOW UP High QTR 4 Planned    0  0  0

SECONDARY SCHOOLS

MOUNTAIN ASH 
COMPREHENSIVE 
SCHOOL

High QTR 1 Draft 
Report 02/07/2018 06/07/2018 26/09/2018 82 23/10/2018 27  0

TREORCHY 
COMPREHENSIVE 
SCHOOL

High QTR 1 Final 
Report 11/06/2018 02/07/2018 31/07/2018 29 10/09/2018 41 12/09/2018 2

Y PANT FOLLOW UP High QTR 1 Final 
Report 05/03/2018 26/03/2018 11/05/2018 46 12/10/2018 154 16/10/2018 4

ABERDARE 
COMMUNITY SCHOOL High QTR 3 Planned    0  0  0

YSGOL GYFUN 
GARTH OLWG 
FOLLOW UP

High QTR 1 Final 
Report 27/03/2018 11/04/2018 23/04/2018 12 30/04/2018 7 15/05/2018 15

HAWTHORN HIGH 
SCHOOL FOLLOW UP High QTR 1 Draft 

Report 26/02/2018 20/03/2018 06/06/2018 78  0  0

T
udalen 49



 

Pr
io

rit
y

Pl
an

ne
d 

Q
tr

St
at

us

St
ar

t F
ie

ld
w

or
k

Fi
ni

sh
 F

ie
ld

w
or

k

D
ra

ft 
R

ep
or

t I
ss

ue
d

D
ay

s 
be

tw
ee

n 
en

di
ng

 fi
el

dw
or

k 
&

 
is

su
in

g 
dr

af
t r

ep
or

t

M
an

ag
em

en
t

R
es

po
ns

es

Ti
m

el
in

es
s 

of
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

R
es

po
ns

e

Fi
na

l
R

ep
or

t

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

re
sp

on
se

 to
 is

su
in

g 
fin

al
 re

po
rt

YSGOL GYFUN CWM 
RHONDDA High QTR 1 Draft 

Report 25/06/2018 29/06/2018 11/09/2018 74  0  0

TONYPANDY 
COMMUNITY 
COLLEGE

High QTR 4 Planned    0  0  0

PRIMARY SCHOOLS

CWMBACH 
COMMUNITY 
PRIMARY SCHOOL

Medium QTR 1 Final 
Report 07/06/2018 21/06/2018 27/06/2018 6 11/07/2018 14 25/07/2018 14

CAEGARW PRIMARY 
SCHOOL Medium QTR 1 Final 

Report 05/07/2018 01/08/2018 09/08/2018 8 01/10/2018 53 09/10/2018 8

CAPCOCH PRIMARY 
SCHOOL Medium QTR 1 Draft 

Report 18/07/2018 25/06/2018 30/08/2018 66  0  0

CARADOG PRIMARY 
SCHOOL Medium QTR 1 Draft 

Report 07/06/2018 08/06/2018 29/06/2018 21 09/07/2018 10  0

CWMDAR PRIMARY 
SCHOOL Medium QTR 1 Final 

Report 03/07/2018 04/07/2018 09/08/2018 36 14/09/2018 36 19/09/2018 5

CWMLAI PRIMARY 
SCHOOL Medium QTR 3 Fieldwork 

Complete 08/10/2018 10/10/2018  0  0  0

DARRENLAS 
PRIMARY SCHOOL Medium QTR 1 Final 

Report 12/07/2018 13/07/2018 31/07/2018 18 13/08/2018 13 16/08/2018 3

GELLI PRIMARY 
SCHOOL Medium QTR 1 Final 

Report 10/07/2018 11/07/2018 16/08/2018 36 10/09/2018 25 12/09/2018 2

T
udalen 50



 

Pr
io

rit
y

Pl
an

ne
d 

Q
tr

St
at

us

St
ar

t F
ie

ld
w

or
k

Fi
ni

sh
 F

ie
ld

w
or

k

D
ra

ft 
R

ep
or

t I
ss

ue
d

D
ay

s 
be

tw
ee

n 
en

di
ng

 fi
el

dw
or

k 
&

 
is

su
in

g 
dr

af
t r

ep
or

t

M
an

ag
em

en
t

R
es

po
ns

es

Ti
m

el
in

es
s 

of
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

R
es

po
ns

e

Fi
na

l
R

ep
or

t

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

re
sp

on
se

 to
 is

su
in

g 
fin

al
 re

po
rt

HAWTHORN PRIMARY 
SCHOOL Medium QTR 1 Draft 

Report 12/06/2018 14/06/2018 16/08/2018 63  0  0

HIRWAUN PRIMARY 
SCHOOL Medium QTR 1 Final 

Report 20/06/2018 21/06/2018 30/08/2018 70 05/10/2018 36 11/10/2018 6

LLWYNCRWN 
PRIMARY SCHOOL Medium QTR 3 Planned    0  0  0

MISKIN PRIMARY 
SCHOOL Medium QTR 3 Draft 

Report 15/10/2018 18/10/2018 25/10/2018 7  0  0

PARC PRIMARY 
SCHOOL Medium QTR 3 Planned    0  0  0

PARCLEWIS PRIMARY 
SCHOOL Medium QTR 3 Draft 

Report 10/10/2018 11/10/2018 26/10/2018 15  0  0

PRIMARY SCHOOL 
SELF ASSESSMENT 
REPORT 17/18

Medium QTR 1 Final 
Report 10/04/2018 11/04/2018 18/07/2018 98 18/07/2018 0 18/07/2018 0

YGG LLWYNCELYN Medium QTR 3 Planned    0  0  0

CWMAMAN PRIMARY Medium QTR 3 Planned    0  0  0

PRIMARY SCHOOL 
SELF ASSESSMENT 
REPORT 18/19

Medium QTR 4 Planned    0  0  0

SCHOOLS & COMMUNITY

T
udalen 51



 

Pr
io

rit
y

Pl
an

ne
d 

Q
tr

St
at

us

St
ar

t F
ie

ld
w

or
k

Fi
ni

sh
 F

ie
ld

w
or

k

D
ra

ft 
R

ep
or

t I
ss

ue
d

D
ay

s 
be

tw
ee

n 
en

di
ng

 fi
el

dw
or

k 
&

 
is

su
in

g 
dr

af
t r

ep
or

t

M
an

ag
em

en
t

R
es

po
ns

es

Ti
m

el
in

es
s 

of
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

R
es

po
ns

e

Fi
na

l
R

ep
or

t

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

re
sp

on
se

 to
 is

su
in

g 
fin

al
 re

po
rt

POST 16 PLANNING 
AND FUNDING 2017/18 High QTR 1 Final 

Report 06/11/2017 04/05/2018 21/05/2018 17 17/08/2018 88 21/08/2018 4

POST 16 PLANNING 
AND FUNDING 2018/19 High QTR 3 Planned    0  0  0

POST 16 GRANT High QTR 4 Planned    0  0  0

EARLY YEARS 
PROVISION High QTR 3 Planned    0  0  0

EDUCATION 
IMPROVEMENT 
GRANT

High QTR 2 Final 
Report 03/09/2018 24/09/2018 28/09/2018 4 28/09/2018 0 28/09/2018 0

ACCESS & ENGAGEMENT & INCLUSION

IN YEAR TRANSFER 
PROTOCOLS High QTR 2 Draft 

Report 29/05/2018 08/10/2018 25/10/2018 17  0  0

THEMATIC REVIEWS - COMPREHENSIVE SCHOOLS

SCHOOL PRIVATE 
FUNDS High QTR 3 Planned    0  0  0

PURCHASE CARDS High QTR 3 Planned    0  0  0

SAFEGUARDING 
ARRANGEMENTS High QTR 3 Planned    0  0  0

GOVERNANCE 
ARRANGEMENTS High QTR 3 Planned    0  0  0

T
udalen 52



 

Pr
io

rit
y

Pl
an

ne
d 

Q
tr

St
at

us

St
ar

t F
ie

ld
w

or
k

Fi
ni

sh
 F

ie
ld

w
or

k

D
ra

ft 
R

ep
or

t I
ss

ue
d

D
ay

s 
be

tw
ee

n 
en

di
ng

 fi
el

dw
or

k 
&

 
is

su
in

g 
dr

af
t r

ep
or

t

M
an

ag
em

en
t

R
es

po
ns

es

Ti
m

el
in

es
s 

of
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

R
es

po
ns

e

Fi
na

l
R

ep
or

t

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

re
sp

on
se

 to
 is

su
in

g 
fin

al
 re

po
rt

WHOLE AUTHORITY ARRANGEMENTS

PERFORMANCE 
INDICATORS High QTR 2 Draft 

Report 01/08/2018 10/10/2018 15/10/2018 5  0  0

OPERATIONAL RISK 
MANAGEMENT High QTR 4 Planned    0  0  0

ORGANISED CRIME 
REVIEW High QTR 1 Draft 

Report 13/12/2017 11/06/2018 29/06/2018 18  0  0

DIGITALISATION High QTR 3 Planned    0  0  0

COMMERCIALISATION High QTR 3 Planned    0  0  0

INDEPENDENCE High QTR 3 Planned    0  0  0

EARLY 
INTERVENTION & 
PREVENTION

High QTR 4 Planned    0  0  0

EFFICIENT & 
EFFECTIVE 
ORGANISATION

High QTR 4 Planned    0  0  0

ANTI-FRAUD, 
BRIBERY & 
CORRUPTION

High QTR 3 Planned    0  0  0

T
udalen 53



Appendix 2 - The Status of Recommendations

CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Number of HIGH Recs STATUS

Implemented Overdue / Outstanding Target Date in the 
Future11

11 0 0
Number of MEDIUM 

Recs STATUS

Implemented Overdue / Outstanding Target Date in the 
Future67

67 0 0
Number of LOW Recs STATUS

Implemented Overdue / Outstanding Target Date in the 
Future51

50 0 1

COMMUNITY & CHILDREN'S SERVICES

Number of HIGH Recs STATUS

Implemented Overdue / Outstanding Target Date in the 
Future20

20 0 0
Number of MEDIUM 

Recs STATUS

Implemented Overdue / Outstanding Target Date in the 
Future135

135 0 0
Number of LOW Recs STATUS

Implemented Overdue / Outstanding Target Date in the 
Future87

87 0 0

Tudalen 54



CORPORATE & FRONTLINE SERVICES

Number of HIGH 
Recs STATUS

Implemented Overdue / Outstanding Target Date in the 
Future32

30 1 1
Number of 

MEDIUM Recs STATUS

Implemented Overdue / Outstanding Target Date in the 
Future90

89 0 1
Number of LOW 

Recs STATUS

Implemented Overdue / Outstanding Target Date in the 
Future42

42 0 0

EDUCATION & LIFELONG LEARNING

Number of HIGH 
Recs STATUS

Implemented Overdue / Outstanding Target Date in the 
Future255

249 0 6
Number of 

MEDIUM Recs STATUS

Implemented Overdue / Outstanding Target Date in the 
Future722

699 6 17
Number of LOW 

Recs STATUS

Implemented Overdue / Outstanding Target Date in the 
Future579

562 6 11

Tudalen 55



WHOLE AUTHORITY ARRANGEMENTS

Number of HIGH 
Recs STATUS

Implemented Overdue / Outstanding Target Date in the 
Future6

4 2 0
Number of 

MEDIUM Recs STATUS

Implemented Overdue / Outstanding Target Date in the 
Future9

8 1 0
Number of LOW 

Recs STATUS

Implemented Overdue / Outstanding Target Date in the 
Future0

0 0 0

Tudalen 56



RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2018/19

AUDIT COMMITTEE

5TH NOVEMBER 2018

FINALISED AUDIT ASSIGNMENTS

REPORT OF THE GROUP DIRECTOR, CORPORATE & FRONTLINE SERVICES

Author: Marc Crumbie (Head of Internal Audit & Procurement Development 
Programmes)

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1 This report provides Members with a summary of audit assignments 
completed between 5th September 2018 and 26th October 2018.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

It is recommended that Members:

2.1 Seek clarity and explanation where there are areas of concern.

2.2 Identify further action to be taken where deemed necessary.

3. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

3.1 To help ensure that Audit Committee discharges its responsibilities in respect 
of reviewing and forming an opinion on the overall control environment in 
place across the Council.

4. BACKGROUND

4.1 The Audit Committee Terms of Reference (Point D) requires it to ‘Review, 
scrutinise and issue reports and recommendations in relation to the Authority’s 
financial affairs, and providing the opportunity for direct discussion with the 
auditor(s) on these’. 

4.2 In line with this requirement Appendix 1 provides a summary of the audit 
assignments completed between 5th September 2018 and 26th October 2018. 
Members will note that the summary provides for each assignment: the 
Introduction, Scope & Objectives, Auditor’s stated opinion and a summary of 

Tudalen 57

Agendwm 8



all recommendations made for each audit review completed to final report 
stage within the stated period.  

4.3 To help ensure Audit Committee effectively discharges the responsibility as 
set out in its Terms of Reference (and replicated at point 4.1 above), Members 
may wish to consider the principles noted below in addition to their own lines 
of enquiry: 

 Are the conclusions made by Internal Audit reasonable / backed up by the 
findings reported?
 

 Are the recommendations made by Internal Audit likely to support the 
necessary improvement in internal control? 

4.4 Members will note that 6 audit assignments have been finalised in the period 
and are set out in Table 1 below.

Table 1 – finalised audit assignments

EDUCATION & INCLUSION SERVICES
 CAEGARW PRIMARY SCHOOL
 CWMDAR PRIMARY SCHOOL
 GELLI PRIMARY SCHOOL
 HIRWAUN PRIMARY SCHOOL
 TREORCHY COMPREHENSIVE SCHOOL
 Y PANT COMPREHENSIVE SCHOOL - FOLLOW UP

5. EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS

There are no equality and diversity implications as a result of the 
recommendations set out in the report. 

6. CONSULTATION 

There are no consultation implications as a result of the recommendations set 
out in the report. 

7. FINANCIAL IMPLICATION(S)

There are no financial implications as a result of the recommendations set out 
in the report. 

8. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS OR LEGISLATION CONSIDERED 

8.1 The provision of regular information in respect of the Council’s Internal Audit 
Service supports the Council in demonstrating compliance with the Accounts 
and Audit (Wales) (Amendment) Regulations 2018.

Tudalen 58



8.2 Regulation 7 (Internal Audit) of Part 3 of the 2018 Regulations directs that: “A 
relevant body must maintain an adequate and effective system of internal 
audit of its accounting records and of its system of internal control.”

9. LINKS TO CORPORATE AND NATIONAL PRIORITIES AND THE WELL-
BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS ACT

THE COUNCIL’S CORPORATE PLAN PRIORITIES 
9.1 The work of Internal Audit aims to support the delivery of the priorities 

contained within the Council’s Corporate Plan – The Way Ahead, in particular 
‘Living Within Our Means’ through ensuring that appropriate internal controls 
are in place to effectively manage resources. 

WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS ACT
9.2 The Sustainable Development Principles, in particular Prevention, can be 

applied to the systematic reviews undertaken in order to provide assurance 
that risks to the achievement of objectives are being managed.

10. CONCLUSION

10.1 The regular provision of all summarised audit assignments to Audit Committee 
throughout the year is aimed at assisting Members in evaluating the 
effectiveness of Internal Audit work across all Council systems and services.

10.2 In doing so, it enables Members to form an opinion on the overall control 
environment of the Council at the end of the financial year.

Other Information:-

Relevant Scrutiny Committee
Not applicable.

Contact Officer – Marc Crumbie

Tudalen 59



LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972

AS AMENDED BY

THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985

RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

AUDIT COMMITTEE

5th November 2018

FINALISED AUDIT ASSIGNMENTS

REPORT OF THE GROUP DIRECTOR, CORPORATE & FRONTLINE SERVICES
Author: Marc Crumbie (Head of Internal Audit & Procurement Development 
Programmes)
Item: 8

Background Papers

None.

Officer to contact: Marc Crumbie

Tudalen 60



Appendix 1 - Summary of audit assignments completed between 5th September 2018 and 26th October 2018

EDUCATION & INCLUSION SERVICES

AUDIT NAME: CAEGARW PRIMARY SCHOOL

DATE FINAL REPORT WAS ISSUED: 09/10/2018

INTRODUCTION
The self-evaluation process is designed to evaluate the effectiveness of a school’s financial and governance arrangements. The process requires primary 
schools to complete a self-evaluation checklist against expected controls.
Caegarw Primary was last subject to an Internal Audit review in November 2014 and this is the third cyclical visit made to the School to examine progress 
made under the self-evaluation process. 
The Headteacher has confirmed that this report has been presented to the Full Governing Body at its meeting held on the 17th October 2018.

SCOPE & OBJECTIVES
The checklist for non-chequebook primary schools comprises of 105 standards. Audit testing was carried out on a sample transactions processed during 
financial year 2018/19.
The objectives of the review were:  

 To ensure compliance with Section 175 of the Education Act 2002, this requires Governing Bodies to have arrangements for exercising their 
functions with a view to Safeguarding.  

 To ensure that the School Private Fund is appropriately administered in accordance with the requirements of the 2017 School Private Fund 
Regulations.   

 To ensure that the Purchase Card is being used in accordance with the guidance and procedures issued by the Procurement Service.  
 To ensure that all school meals income is identified, received and collected in accordance with Council Policy, arrears regularly reported and 

followed up and free meals only provided where entitlement has been confirmed by the Council.  
 To ensure that all orders raised by the School are appropriate and reflected in the budget, are correctly authorised and comply with Financial 

Regulations. 
 To ensure that all Formula Funding allocations are based on up to date and correct numbers of registered pupils, and an audit trail is maintained to 

ensure accountability and transparency of the numbers submitted.
 To ensure that the opportunities for unauthorised use of the School's IT equipment are restricted, that computer hardware and software is 

adequately protected and that the School and Governing Body are appropriately registered under the Data Protection Act 2018.
 To review the governance arrangements in place at the School.

T
udalen 61



AUDIT OPINION
Governance 
The control environment in respect of Governance is considered to be effective with opportunity for improvement.
All statutory policies and documents were present at the time of the audit. A number of policies were reviewed during the Spring Term 2018 and were found 
to have been signed and dated by both the Chair of Governors and Headteacher. A rolling Policy review programme is in place, however for some of the 
older policies, it was unclear as to when they were reviewed and presented to the Governing Body as many did not have cover sheets with these details 
recorded, and little evidence of them being presented to the Governing Body contained within the Governing Body minutes.    
A Register of Business Interests is in place with declarations completed by the 11 current governors. The School currently has one Governing Body vacancy 
for which they should continue to endeavour to fill. The School should also introduce attendance registers for the sub-committee meetings that are not 
facilitated by the Council’s Governor Support Service. 
Safeguarding & Educational Visits 
The control environment in respect of Safeguarding & Educational Visits is considered to be effective with opportunity for improvement. 
The School has a Child Protection Policy in place which was reviewed in May 2018 and is due to be presented to the Governing Body in the Autumn Term 
2018. There was documentary evidence at the School to confirm that all members of staff have received a copy of the Policy, and have read and 
understood it. Evidence of Level 1 Safeguarding Training was available at the School for all staff.  The Headteacher, Deputy Headteacher and three other 
members of staff have also received Level 3 safeguarding training.
It was however noted that whilst the School has adopted the Council’s ‘Staff Disciplinary for School Based Staff’ Policy it was an older version dated 
September 2012. This report recommends that the most recent version of the Policy is represented to the Governing Body for ratification. While a file is 
maintained containing details of all DBS / pre-employment checks carried out in respect of agency or supply staff, occasions were identified where 
information had not been printed and/or retained as evidence of the placement.
The School use the Evolve system to document and authorise planned trips; audit testing confirmed that all trips examined had been recorded and 
submitted for approval within the correct timescales.
School Private Fund
The control environment in relation to the School Private Fund is considered to be effective with opportunity for improvement.    
The Treasurer maintains detailed records with an adequate audit trail of all income and expenditure transactions. An electronic ledger is maintained; 
however no running balance is currently recorded or details of the total bankings made. Income is collected fortnightly via the secure collection service and 
the account reconciled to the bank statements monthly. 
Payment was made to an entity for services, however, it was reported that no IR35 checks were completed prior to commencement of service provision. 
Two occasions were noted where a receipt / voucher was not present to support the expenditure incurred and this report recommends the introduction of a 
Record of Expenditure Without a Receipt form for such occasions. A review of the latest annual certificate revealed that it was accurately completed; 
however it was not submitted to Education Finance until after the deadline date.  
The  School currently has only 2 authorised cheque signatories, both of whom are required to sign cheques. To avoid the potential for delays, the School 
could identify an additional signatory. 

T
udalen 62



Purchase Card
The control environment in relation to the Purchase Card is considered to be effective with opportunity for improvement.
There are 2 purchase cards in operation at the School. While a transaction log is maintained in respect of one card in operation, no transaction log is used 
for the second. Should the School wish to continue with the operation of 2 cards, a separate transaction log should be maintained. 
A card sharing log is in place to document occasions where the main card is used by other members of staff and all purchases reviewed were supported 
with appropriate documentation i.e. receipts, invoices and a Record of Expenditure Without a Receipt pro-forma is in use when required.
School Meals 
The control environment in relation to the School Meals system is considered to be effective with opportunity for improvement.
School meals income is recorded directly onto SIMS, with meal numbers provided to Catering staff daily. Income is collected fortnightly via the secure 
collection service and returns in respect of both catering and banking are submitted accordingly. 
At the time of the visit there were 3 pupils with arrears in excess of the 2 week limit, and when questioned, staff at the School confirmed that arrangements 
were in place to ensure that these balances would be cleared before the end of the Summer Term.
It was also identified that no half termly report has been returned to Catering Finance in respect of the February or Easter 2018 Terms. The School should 
ensure that all returns are submitted in accordance with the Arrears protocol. 
Formula Funding
The control environment in relation to Formula Funding is considered to be effective and there are no findings contained within this report. 
Pupil numbers were reviewed and no discrepancies were noted.
Implementation of the recommendations contained within this report will enhance the control environment further.

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS:
REPORT 
REF. & 

PRIORITY
FINDING RECOMMENDATION IMPLEMENTATION 

DATE

5.1.1

Medium

While a Policy Review process is in place at the School, it was not 
always possible to establish when some of the School’s Policies and 
Documents were reviewed, when they are due to be reviewed and 
when they have been presented to the Governing Body for ratification.

This information would usually be included on the cover of the relevant 
Policy.

While this was present on some occasions it was not the case for all 
policies and documents. It was also sometimes difficult to identify this 

Any policies that are updated/amended need 
to be presented to the Governing Body for 
ratification with a record held of this 
(recorded via the minutes). Details should be 
captured on the document covers i.e. date 
reviewed, date to be reviewed, signed and 
dated etc. 

Implemented 

T
udalen 63



SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS:
REPORT 
REF. & 

PRIORITY
FINDING RECOMMENDATION IMPLEMENTATION 

DATE

from the Governing Body meeting minutes.

5.1.2

Low

Examination of the current Governing Body structure revealed that 
there is one vacancy.

It is acknowledged that the School has endeavoured to fill this 
vacancy.

The School should continue to endeavour to 
fill the Governor vacancy as soon as 
possible.

Implemented 

5.1.3

Low

While the School’s Governor Support Officer minutes and retains the 
attendance lists for any Full Governing Body meetings, attendance 
sheets are not maintained by the School in respect of any sub-
committee meetings held. 

For those meetings not attended / minuted by 
the Governor Support Officer, attendance 
lists should be completed and retained at the 
school. 

Implemented 

5.2.1

Medium

The School has adopted the RCT Staff Disciplinary for School Based 
Staff and this was recently presented to and adopted by the Governing 
Body.  

A review of this document revealed that it was dated 2012. However, 
the current operating version of the Policy is dated September 2013.

The Headteacher should ensure that the 
most recent version of the Staff Disciplinary 
Policy is presented to the Governing Body for 
ratification. 

Implemented 

5.2.2

Medium

Where agency or supply staff are used by the School, a file is 
maintained containing printouts, emails and DBS information relating to 
the placement. 

However a review of the supporting paperwork identified occasions 
where supporting paperwork had not been printed / saved and 
retained. The School Clerk did however report that difficulty had been 
experienced with the retention of emails due to the limited inbox 
storage since being transferred over to the RCT mailbox.

An up to date list / record of all agency / 
supply staff should be maintained at the 
school detailing their names, DBS reference 
numbers and date of check.  

Care should be taken to ensure that all 
emails received by the school from supply 
agencies confirming details of the 
placements are printed and retained in a 
central file as appropriate evidence of the 

Implemented 

T
udalen 64



SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS:
REPORT 
REF. & 

PRIORITY
FINDING RECOMMENDATION IMPLEMENTATION 

DATE

pre-employment check.

5.3.1

Low

Currently the School has 2 authorised cheque signatories for the 
School Private Fund. 

The School should update the current 
signatories for the School Private Fund 
account to include an additional signatory. 

31 December 2018

5.3.2

Medium

The School are using an electronic ledger for recording School Private 
Fund transactions.  

Examination of this ledger revealed that whilst the overall format is 
adequate, a running balance of the account is not maintained and 
whilst individual income entries are recorded, the total income banked 
is currently not detailed.  

To ensure that an accurate balance of the 
School Private Fund is maintained, an 
additional column should be added to the 
ledger to allow a running balance to be 
maintained following each transaction.  The 
totals of income banked and  a date of 
banking should also be recorded. 

A standard template for an electronic ledger 
is available and was distributed to all schools 
by Education Finance in April 2018.

Implemented 

5.3.3

Low

Point 5.1 of the School Private Fund Regulations states:
'All items of expenditure must be supported by a relevant receipt / 
invoice as proof of payment. Where, due to exceptional circumstances, 
it is accepted that such documents cannot reasonably be provided; the 
Treasurer must record the details of the purchase on a Record of 
Expenditure Made Without Receipts Form, which must be signed by 
the member of staff who incurred the expenditure (N.B. This should be 
avoided wherever possible.). An example of this form is included as 
Appendix 8.'
Two occasions were noted during the sample period examined where 

Receipts should be retained to support all 
expenditure from the School Private Fund.

Where this is not possible, a Record of 
Expenditure Made Without Receipts form 
should be completed and appropriately 
signed, an example of which can be found in 
the School Private Fund Regulations 
(Appendix 8). 

Implemented 

T
udalen 65



SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS:
REPORT 
REF. & 

PRIORITY
FINDING RECOMMENDATION IMPLEMENTATION 

DATE

no supporting receipts or vouchers were available : 
£50 - Aberdare Netball League - 102026
£40 - Newton Parish - 102035 - 102035

5.3.4

High

Examination of a sample of expenditure from the School Private Fund 
identified that payments have been made to a Historian who carries out 
learning activities with pupils. No HMRC IR35 questionnaire was 
completed prior to appointing this individual.

Before a School engages with an external 
entity for the provision of services, they must 
review the employment status using the 
HMRC IR35 online tool.

This should be done for this individual prior to 
any further sessions being arranged, with 
evidence of the check retained at the School.

Further guidance on the completion of the 
online tool can be sought from the Council’s 
Payroll & Payments Service Manager.

Implemented 

5.4.1

Low

It was reported by Catering Finance that the School failed to submit 
their half term school meal arrears returns for February and Easter 
2018.

The School must ensure that they submit 
their half termly arrears return in accordance 
with the Arrears protocol.

Implemented 

5.5.1

Medium

The School currently has two purchase cards, one of which has only 
been used once since January 2018. 

It was identified that no transaction log is in place for the card acquired 
in January.

If the School are to continue using both 
purchase cards then a second transaction log 
should be introduced, with details of all 
purchase card transactions recorded on the 
log as and when they occur, and cross 
referenced to their respective 
invoice/voucher.

Implemented 

T
udalen 66



AUDIT NAME: CWMDAR PRIMARY SCHOOL

DATE FINAL REPORT WAS ISSUED: 19/09/2018

INTRODUCTION
The self-evaluation process is designed to evaluate the effectiveness of a school’s financial and governance arrangements. The process requires primary 
schools to complete a self-evaluation checklist against expected controls.
Cwmdar Primary School was last subject to an Internal Audit Review in November 2014 and this is the second cyclical visit made to the School since the 
amalgamation of the former Infants and Junior schools to examine progress made under the self-evaluation process.
The Headteacher has confirmed that this report was presented to the Full Governing Body at its meeting held on the 1st October 2018.

SCOPE & OBJECTIVES
The checklist for non-chequebook primary schools comprises of 105 standards. Audit testing was carried out on a sample of transactions processed during 
financial year 2018/19.
The objectives of the review were:  

 To ensure compliance with Section 175 of the Education Act 2002, this requires Governing Bodies to have arrangements for exercising their 
functions with a view to Safeguarding.  

 To ensure that the School Private Fund is appropriately administered in accordance with the requirements of the 2017 School Private Fund 
Regulations.   

 To ensure that the Purchase Card is being used in accordance with the guidance and procedures issued by the Procurement Service.  
 To ensure that all School meals income is identified, received and collected in accordance with Council Policy, arrears regularly reported and 

followed up and free meals only provided where entitlement has been confirmed by the Council.  
 To ensure that all orders raised by the School are appropriate and reflected in the budget, are correctly authorised and comply with Financial 

Regulations. 
 To ensure that all Formula Funding allocations are based on up to date and correct numbers of registered pupils, and an audit trail is maintained to 

ensure accountability and transparency of the numbers submitted.
 To ensure that the opportunities for unauthorised use of the School's IT equipment are restricted, that computer hardware and software is 

adequately protected and that the School and Governing Body are appropriately registered under the Data Protection Act 2018. 
 To review the governance arrangements in place at the School.

T
udalen 67



AUDIT OPINION
Governance 
The control environment is respect of Governance is considered to be effective with opportunity for improvement.
All statutory policies and documents were present at the time of the audit. These had been reviewed following the appointment of the current Headteacher 
in April 2017 and were found to have been signed and dated by both the Chair of Governors and Headteacher. In order to complete this exercise, this report 
recommends that these be presented to the Full Governing Body for ratification with a rolling programme of review and ratification being put in place 
thereafter.    
A Register of Business Interests is in place and declarations were present for all current governors. The School currently has a full Governing Body with no 
vacancies at this time. While the majority of minutes have been signed by the Chair of Governors this had not been done for all of the sub-committee 
minutes examined.
Safeguarding & Educational Visits 
The control environment in respect of Safeguarding & Educational Visits is considered to be effective with opportunity for improvement. 
The School has a Child Protection Policy in place which was reviewed in June 2018 and is due to be presented to the Governing Body in the Autumn Term 
meeting 2018. There was documentary evidence in place at the School to confirm that all members of staff had received a copy of the Policy and had read 
and understood it.
Management at the School indicated that Level 1 safeguarding refresher training is delivered to all staff at the start of each academic year; however there 
was no evidence to support this by way of a formal record of attendance. It was also noted that there are currently 4 staff trained to Level 3 who last 
completed training in February 2016 and is therefore due to be updated (as this is required every 2 years). 
A record of DBS checks was in place at the School and was up to date. The School use the Evolve system to document and authorise all planned trips and 
all trips examined had been recorded and submitted for approval within the correct timescales.
Purchase Card
The control environment in relation to the Purchase Card is considered to be effective and there are no findings contained within this report. 
There is one Purchase Card in operation at the School. A Transaction Log is maintained to record all expenditure and a card sharing log in place to 
document occasions where the card is used by other members of staff. All purchases reviewed were supported with documentation i.e. receipts, invoices, 
online orders, and a Record of Expenditure Without a Receipt pro-forma has been completed when required.
School Private Fund
The control environment in relation to the School Private Fund is considered to be effective and there are no findings contained within this report.  
The Treasurer maintains detailed records with an adequate audit trail of all income and expenditure transactions. A manual ledger is maintained and this 
was found to be of an appropriate format and was up to date at the time of the review.  Income is banked weekly and the account reconciled to the bank 
statements monthly. 
All expenditure within the sample was solely for the benefit of the pupils and was supported with receipts. A review of the latest annual statement revealed 
that it was accurately completed and submitted in accordance with the deadlines contained within the School Private Fund Regulations. 
School Meals 

T
udalen 68



The control environment in relation to the School Meals system is considered to be effective with opportunity for improvement.  
School meals income is recorded directly onto SIMS with meal numbers provided to Catering staff daily. Income is banked weekly and returns in respect of 
both catering and banking are submitted accordingly. This report however recommends that a second paying in slip is completed at the end of each week 
for any additional income received after the main collection and banking has been undertaken. This will allow for an easier reconciliation between the 
weekly income received and corresponding Catering and Banking Returns, as the amount will be easily identifiable and not incorporated into a consolidated 
banking the following week.   
The School is sending reminders to parents in respect of dinner money arrears on a weekly basis and Catering Finance are provided with a ½ termly report. 
At the time of the visit there were no pupils with arrears in excess of the 2 week limit.     
Formula Funding
The control environment in relation to Formula Funding is considered to be effective and there are no findings contained within this report. 
Pupil numbers were reviewed and no discrepancies were noted.
Implementation of the recommendations contained within this report will enhance the control environment further.

 
REPORT 
REF. & 

PRIORITY
FINDING RECOMMENDATION IMPLEMENTATION 

DATE

5.1.1

Medium

It was difficult to establish when some of the School’s Policies and 
Documents were reviewed, when they are due to be  reviewed and 
ratified / presented to the Governing Body due to the lack of 
information or detail included on the Policy document cover.  While this 
was present on some occasions it was not the case for all policies and 
documents. It was also sometimes difficult to identify this from the 
Governing Body meeting minutes. 

It is acknowledged that the Headteacher has only been in post full time 
since April 2017, following which time a review process has 
commenced.

The Headteacher and Governing Body 
should ensure that they implement a rolling 
programme to  review  all School policies. 
This will ensure that all policies are up to date 
and reflect the current practices at the 
School. 

Any policies that are updated/amended need 
to be presented to the Governing Body for 
ratification with a record held of this 
(recorded via the minutes). Details should be 
captured on the document covers i.e. date 
reviewed, date to be reviewed, signed and 
dated etc.

Implemented

5.1.2 The Government of Maintained Schools (Wales) 2005 Regulation, Part All governing body committee and sub- 30 April 2019

T
udalen 69



 
REPORT 
REF. & 

PRIORITY
FINDING RECOMMENDATION IMPLEMENTATION 

DATE

Medium
7 states that:
‘(2) The minutes of the proceedings must be entered into a book kept 
for the purpose by the clerk and may be entered on loose-leaf pages 
consecutively numbered; but in that case the person signing the 
minutes must initial each page.

Review of the Governing Body minutes revealed that whilst the 
majority of minutes have been signed by the Chair of Governors it was 
noted that some of the sub-committee minutes had not been signed. 

committee minutes should be signed by the 
Chair of Governors. 

5.2.1

Medium

Section 2.21 of Keeping Learners Safe: The role of local authorities, 
governing bodies and proprietors of independent Schools under the 
Education Act 2002 (WAG circular 158/2015) states that:
'Governing Bodies should ensure that all staff and volunteers who work 
with children undertake appropriate training to equip them with the 
knowledge and skills that are necessary to carry out their 
responsibilities for child protection effectively, which is kept up to date 
by refresher training'.

Management at the School indicated that Level 1 safeguarding 
refresher training is delivered to all staff at the start of each academic 
year; however there was no evidence to support this by way of a formal 
record of attendance. 

It was also noted that there are currently 4 staff trained to Level 3 who 
last completed training in February 2016 and is therefore due to be 
updated (as this is required every 2 years). 

The Headteacher should ensure that 
Safeguarding training is renewed as and 
when required for all members of staff and 
those certificates are received and retained 
accordingly. 

The School should develop a central training 
record to demonstrate the date and level of 
safeguarding training alongside individual 
staff names. This could be incorporated into 
the Child Protection Policy to allow the 
assessment of training requirements to 
coincide with the Policy’s annual review.  

A formal training record / attendance register 
should be put in place at the school and 
updated as and when training is delivered / 
received.

30 April 2019

T
udalen 70



 
REPORT 
REF. & 

PRIORITY
FINDING RECOMMENDATION IMPLEMENTATION 

DATE

5.3.1

Low

The majority of school meals income is collected and banked on a 
Monday or Tuesday, with a SIMS Banking Return also completed at 
this time. 

Any income received after this is updated to SIMS but not banked until 
the following Monday or Tuesday, with the additional amount being 
consolidated into one banking and recorded on one bank paying in 
slip.   

As each weekly banking comprises of income received during 2 
separate weeks and Banking / Catering Returns completed at separate 
stages, it can be difficult to reconcile the weekly income received and 
banked.

A second bank paying in slip should be 
completed at the end of each week, detailing 
any additional income received since the 
main collection and banking was undertaken.   

The Catering and Banking Returns should 
also be completed at this time, allowing the 
weekly income recorded on SIMS to agree to 
both the meals served and Catering / 
Banking Returns. 

Note - This income can still be banked the 
following week but will be easily identifiable 
as additional income. 

31 December 2018

T
udalen 71



AUDIT NAME: GELLI PRIMARY SCHOOL

DATE FINAL REPORT WAS ISSUED: 12/09/2018

INTRODUCTION
The self-evaluation process is designed to evaluate the effectiveness of a school’s financial and governance arrangements. The process requires primary 
schools to complete a self-evaluation checklist against expected controls.
Gelli Primary was last subject to an Internal Audit Review in November 2014 and this is the third cyclical visit made to the School to examine progress made 
under the self-evaluation process.
The Headteacher has confirmed that this report was presented to the Full Governing Body at its  meeting held on the 18th October 2018.

SCOPE & OBJECTIVES
The checklist for chequebook primary schools comprises of 155 standards. Audit testing was carried out on a sample transactions processed during 
financial year 2018/19.
The objectives of the review were:  

 To ensure compliance with Section 175 of the Education Act 2002, this requires Governing Bodies to have arrangements for exercising their 
functions with a view to Safeguarding.  

 To ensure that the School Private Fund is appropriately administered in accordance with the requirements of the 2017 School Private Fund 
Regulations.   

 To ensure that the Purchase Card is being used in accordance with the guidance and procedures issued by the Procurement Service.  
 To ensure that all school meals income is identified, received and collected in accordance with Council Policy, arrears regularly reported and 

followed up and free meals only provided where entitlement has been confirmed by the Council.  
 To ensure that all orders raised by the School are appropriate and reflected in the budget, are correctly authorised and comply with Financial 

Regulations.  
 To ensure that the School's budget has been approved by the Governing Body and to ensure that the budget set by the School complies with the 

'Fair Funding : Scheme for Financing Schools, is in line with the funding available, individual budget heads are reasonable and that the budgetary 
information used for monitoring and reporting is complete, accurate and up-to-date. 

 To ensure that the opportunities for unauthorised use of the School's IT equipment are restricted, that computer hardware and software is 
adequately protected and that the School and Governing Body are appropriately registered under the Data Protection Act 2018.

 To ensure that petty cash is held securely, expenditure properly incurred and the account is appropriately monitored and controlled.
 To review the governance arrangements in place at the School.

T
udalen 72



AUDIT OPINION
Safeguarding & Educational Visits
The control environment in respect of Safeguarding & Educational Visits is considered to be effective with opportunity for improvement. 
The School have a Safeguarding and Child Protection Policy in place (dated June 2017). Whilst this had been presented to the School’s Policy Committee it 
had not been presented to, and ratified by, the full Governing Body (this is due to be done in Autumn Term 2018). A Staff Disciplinary Policy is also in place 
and this report recommends that this School based policy is cross referenced to the RCT Staff Disciplinary Policy to ensure that it meets the necessary 
legislation, then presented to the Governing Body for ratification.
Level 1 Safeguarding training is provided to the School annually; however there is no formal record in place to demonstrate which members of staff were in 
attendance. The Headteacher, Deputy Headteacher and three other members of staff have received Level 3 safeguarding training, and certificates were 
present as evidence of this. 
While on screen evidence is viewed to verify details of all DBS / pre-employment checks carried out in respect of agency staff, this information is currently 
not printed / retained as evidence.  It was also noted that payments have been made to a number of entities for the provision of services; however no IR35 
questionnaires were completed prior to engaging with these providers. 
Governance
The control environment is respect of Governance is considered to be effective with opportunity for improvement.
All statutory policies and documents were in place at the time of the audit. A review process has been put in place since the appointment of the current 
Headteacher; however for some of the older policies, it was unclear as to when they were reviewed and presented to the Governing Body as many did not 
have cover sheets with these details recorded, and little evidence of them being presented to the Governing Body were contained in the Governing Body 
minutes.   This report also recommends that all Policies are presented to the Full Governing Body for endorsement following review by the Policy Review 
Committee. 
There were signed copies of all meeting minutes reviewed at the School. However, attendance registers for sub-committees are currently not completed for 
those meetings not attended by the School’s Governor Support Officer. A Register of Business Interests is in place and all current Governors have 
completed the necessary declaration. The School currently have a full Governing Body in place of 13 as per the Constitution.     
School Private Fund
The control environment is respect of the School Private Fund is considered to be effective with opportunity for improvement.
The Treasurer maintains detailed records with an adequate audit trail of all income and expenditure transactions.  All expenditure within the sample period 
examined was solely for the benefit of the pupils and was supported with receipts / vouchers.
The Private Fund account is held with a local bank however income is banked via a local Post Office (for convenience). On review of the account it was 
noted that administrative charges are being incurred for using this facility, and between September 2017 and July 2018, this amounted to over £200. The 
Headteacher should consider utilising the Loomis secure collection service and open a new account via the Council‘s Income & Reconciliation Team which 
will eliminate both the charges and the need for the School Clerk to carry out bankings in person. 
Purchase Card
The control environment in relation to the Purchase Card is considered to be effective with opportunity for improvement. 

T
udalen 73



There was a sufficient audit trail in respect of Purchase Card transactions. Records were up to date and were found to be reconciled upon receipt of the 
bank statements. 
An electronic Transaction Log is currently maintained; however, this is one continuous list with no distinction from period to period. It is recommended that 
the Transaction Log is split into monthly periods (or billing periods) rather than one continuous log which will help the reconciliation process. It is also 
recommended that one single cash book journal for the value of the monthly bill is then undertaken, with details of individual transactions listed within the 
journal. 
Implementation of the recommendations contained within this report will enhance the control environment further.

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS:
REPORT 
REF. & 

PRIORITY
FINDING RECOMMENDATION IMPLEMENTATION 

DATE

5.1.1

Medium

The School has devised its own Staff Disciplinary Policy.  

While Governor Support has confirmed that Schools can devise their 
own Policy, it is the responsibility of the School to ensure that their 
Policy complies with all the necessary legislation. 

It is uncertain as to whether the Policy devised by the School meets 
the requirements of RCT’s ‘Staff Disciplinary for School Based Staff‘ 
policy which is readily available.

The Headteacher should contact the School’s 
Governor Support Officer to obtain a copy of 
the RCT ‘Staff Disciplinary for School Based 
Staff‘ policy.  This should be compared to the 
existing policy to ensure that it meets the 
necessary legislative requirements.

The Policy should then be formally presented 
to the Governing Body for approval, with this 
being clearly minuted.

18 November 2018

5.1.2

High

Section 2.21 of Keeping Learners Safe: The role of local authorities, 
governing bodies and proprietors of independent Schools under the 
Education Act 2002 (WAG circular 158/2015) states that:
‘Governing Bodies should ensure that all staff and volunteers who work 
with children undertake appropriate training to equip them with the 
knowledge and skills that are necessary to carry out their 
responsibilities for child protection effectively, which is kept up to date 
by refresher training.’   

Discussion at the School revealed that Level 1 refresher training is 

A formal training record / attendance register 
should be put in place at the School and 
updated as and when training is delivered / 
received.

Implemented 

T
udalen 74



SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS:
REPORT 
REF. & 

PRIORITY
FINDING RECOMMENDATION IMPLEMENTATION 

DATE

provided to all School staff annually. However no formal record of 
attendance or signing in / out sheet is maintained.

5.1.3

High

On review of a sample of payments made by the School the following 
were identified:
A.S - £326.36
I.F - £400.00
H - £240.00

Discussion at the School revealed that no IR35 questionnaires were 
completed prior to engaging with these providers.  

On review of the Council’s pre-approved IR35 list it was identified that 
none of the aforementioned providers are currently recorded. 

Before the School engages with an external 
entity for the provision of services, the 
employment status must be established 
using the HMRC on line tool.

This must be done prior to any further 
sessions being arranged, with evidence of 
the check retained at the School.

Further guidance on the completion of the 
online tool can be sought from the Council’s 
Payroll & Payments Services Manager.

31 October 2018

5.1.4

Medium

Where agency or supply staff are used by the School, staff at the 
School indicated to Internal Audit that they review on screen evidence 
to confirm the necessary pre-employment checks have been 
undertaken and the person is appropriately DBS checked. However, no 
supporting evidence is printed / saved and retained at the School.
 

An up to date list / record of all agency / 
supply staff should be maintained at the 
School detailing their names, DBS reference 
numbers and date of check.

Care should be taken to ensure that all 
emails received by the School from supply 
agencies confirming details of the 
placements are printed and retained in a 
central file as appropriate evidence of the 
pre-employment check.

Implemented 

5.2.1 The School does not have a rolling programme of review for all The Headteacher and Governing Body 31 July 2019

T
udalen 75



SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS:
REPORT 
REF. & 

PRIORITY
FINDING RECOMMENDATION IMPLEMENTATION 

DATE

High
Policies. In addition, Policies that have been reviewed / updated are 
not always presented to the Governing Body for ratification. 

The Headteacher was also unaware that all policies should be 
presented to and ratified by the full Governing Body (The School have 
a Policy Committee which currently ratifies and reviews all policies).

It is acknowledged that the Headteacher has only been in post full time 
since March 2018.

should ensure that they implement a rolling 
programme of review for all School Policies. 
This will ensure that all Policies are kept up 
to date and reflect the current practices at the 
School. 

All policies (including new ones) that are 
updated/amended need to be re-presented to 
the full Governing Body for ratification with a 
record held of this (recorded via the minutes). 
Details should be captured on the document 
covers i.e. date reviewed, date to be 
reviewed, signed and dated etc.

5.2.2

Low

While the School’s Governor Support Officer minutes and retains the 
attendance lists for any Full Governing Body meetings attended, 
attendance sheets are not maintained by the School in respect of any 
sub-committee meetings held. 

For those meetings not attended / minuted by 
the Governor Support Officer, attendance 
lists should be completed and retained at the 
School. 

Implemented 

5.3.1

Medium

The School’s Private Fund bank account is held with a local bank. Due 
to issues in respect of the closure of local branches, the School are 
currently banking income in a local Post Office for convenience 
purposes. 

On review of the fund bank statements it was identified that the School 
are incurring charges for this facility, and for the period September 
2017 to July 2018, the private fund has incurred over £200 in charges.  

The Headteacher should consider utilising 
the Loomis secure collection service and 
make enquiries with the Council‘s Income & 
Reconciliation Team. Via this service the 
School have the option to open a new* 
Private Fund account with the bank which will 
allow Loomis to collect Schools meals 
income and Private Fund income.

*A new account is required to be opened in 
order to bring it under the umbrella of the 

31 October 2018

T
udalen 76



SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS:
REPORT 
REF. & 

PRIORITY
FINDING RECOMMENDATION IMPLEMENTATION 

DATE

Council’s group of accounts.

5.4.1

Low

A Transaction Log is in place at the School and it was found to be up to 
date with details of the latest transactions. 

However, this is one continuous list of transactions with no clear 
distinction from month to month. 

The Transaction Log should be split into 
monthly periods. This will help in the 
reconciliation process when comparing 
individual entries to the bank statements. 

For each monthly period, the log can be 
printed and retained along with the respective 
period bank statements and the supporting 
documentation. 

Implemented

5.4.2

Low

Discussions at the School revealed that individual cash book journals 
are created on SIMS for each individual purchase card transaction 
payment. 

There is an option to complete a single cash book journal for the billing 
period and details of the transactions made during the billing period are 
recorded within the single cash book journal.  

This will be less time consuming but still allow ease of reconciliation 
and transparency.

The School should consider completing a 
single cash book journal for each monthly 
billing period. The individual transactions 
made during each monthly billing period are 
recorded within the single journal for the 
amount of the month bill. 

Implemented

T
udalen 77



AUDIT NAME: HIRWAUN PRIMARY SCHOOL

DATE FINAL REPORT WAS ISSUED: 11/10/2018

INTRODUCTION
The self-evaluation process is designed to evaluate the effectiveness of a school’s financial and governance arrangements. The process requires primary 
schools to complete a self-evaluation checklist against expected controls.
Hirwaun Primary School was last subject to an Internal Audit Review in December 2014 and this is the third cyclical visit made to the School to examine 
progress made under the self-evaluation process.
The Headteacher has confirmed that this report will be presented to the Full Governing Body at its Autumn Term meeting.

SCOPE & OBJECTIVES
The checklist for chequebook primary schools comprises of 155 standards. Audit testing was carried out on a sample of transactions processed during 
financial years of 2017/18 and 2018/19.
The objectives of the review were: 

 To ensure compliance with Section 175 of the Education Act 2002, this requires Governing Bodies to have arrangements for exercising their 
functions with a view to Safeguarding.  

 To ensure that the School Private Fund is appropriately administered in accordance with the requirements of the 2017 School Private Fund 
Regulations.   

 To ensure that the Purchase Card is being used in accordance with the guidance and procedures issued by the Procurement Service.  
 To ensure that all school meals income is identified, received and collected in accordance with Council Policy, arrears regularly reported and 

followed up and free meals only provided where entitlement has been confirmed by the Council.  
 To ensure that all orders raised by the School are appropriate and reflected in the budget, are correctly authorised and comply with Financial 

Regulations.  
 To ensure that the School’s budget has been approved by the Governing body, is in line with the funding available, individual budget heads are 

reasonable and the budgetary information used for monitoring and reporting is complete, accurate and up-to-date. 
 To ensure that the opportunities for unauthorised use of the School's I.T equipment are restricted, that computer hardware and software is 

adequately protected and that the School and Governing Body are appropriately registered under the Data Protection Act 2018.
 To ensure that petty cash is held securely, expenditure properly incurred and the account is appropriately monitored and controlled.
 To review the governance arrangements in place at the School.

T
udalen 78



AUDIT OPINION
Governance
The control environment is respect of Governance is considered to be effective with opportunity for Improvement.
The roles and responsibilities of the Governing Body and its sub committees have been set out in writing. The Governing Body and its sub committees have 
the requisite number of members and quorate levels for meetings are achieved. A Register of Business interests is in place at the School and is updated 
annually; however, a declaration had not been completed for one (new) Governor.
Whilst all statutory policies and documents were present, there are a number of policies / documents where it was not evident within the Governing Body 
minutes that they had been formally presented and ratified. This report recommends that when policies and documents are reviewed, they are presented to 
the Governing Body for ratification with this being clearly detailed in the Governing Body minutes and review dates clearly recorded on the front covers.
Safeguarding & Educational Visits
The control environment in relation to Safeguarding and Educational Visits is considered to be effective with opportunity for improvement.
Testing identified that all Staff received the appropriate clearances before commencing duties in their posts. Although it was evident that an update on 
Safeguarding was provided to staff during the 2017 Autumn Term, one member of staff was not present for the training (due to maternity leave). It was also 
noted that the Level 3 Training Certificate for one member of staff had expired.
The School have a Safeguarding and Child Protection Policy which is reviewed annually; however, there was no documentary evidence at the School to 
confirm that all members of staff had received a copy of the Policy and had read and understood it. Similarly, the School had not formally made 
parents/guardians aware that the Policy is in existence.
The School make use of the EVOLVE system to record details of all off-site visits and staff are suitably qualified to make use of the system in accordance 
with the document 'Planning and Approval Procedures for Educational Visits'.
School Private Fund
The control environment in relation to the School Private Fund is considered to be effective with opportunity for improvement.
It was established that the Ledger for the current academic year had not been completed until the Summer Term and was not up to date during the Audit 
fieldwork. Furthermore, some anomalies were noted on the Ledger, which would have been made as a result of completing it in retrospect. This report 
recommends that from September 2018, the Ledger be updated as and when a transaction takes place to ensure that an up to date record is always 
available at the School and can be used to complete the bank reconciliation exercise.
Similarly, there is no central record of daily income maintained at the School. Currently, separate records are maintained in respect of each individual trip / 
activity and although the 4 trips examined were reconciled, in addition to the individual trip / activity records, a central Record of Daily Income should also be 
maintained. 
There is an adequate audit trail of all expenditure transactions and for the current academic year all expenditure was solely for the benefit of the pupils / 
School, was in accordance with the School Private Fund Regulations and supported with receipts / invoices. However, this report recommends that a third 
cheque signatory be appointed to ensure that cheques can always be issued promptly.
Purchase Card
The control environment in relation to the Purchase Card is considered to be effective with opportunity for improvement.

T
udalen 79



There is one Purchase Card at the School and there is a sufficient audit trail in respect of evidence being available that supports the expenditure. However, 
audit testing identified that the Transaction Log is not updated with items of expenditure until receipt of the Bank Statement. This report recommends that 
the Transaction Log be updated each time a purchase takes place.
Purchasing
The control environment in relation to the Purchasing system is considered to be effective with opportunity for improvement.
There is a process in place so that all purchases are authorised by the budget holder prior to committing the School to expenditure. From a sample of 5 
completed orders, all had been authorised in accordance with this procedure.  All payments in the sample examined were supported by valid VAT invoices 
and cheque signatories examine documentation prior to authorising cheques.
Notwithstanding this, from a sample of 5 non-orders examined, 3 had been raised in retrospect after receipt of the goods / services provided. In these 
instances an official order (confirmation if made by telephone) should have been raised as soon as a commitment to expenditure was known.
School Meals
The control environment in relation to the School Meals system is considered to be effective and there are no findings contained within this report.
Dinner money is updated to SIMS and banked regularly, and the School manage arrears in line with the Catering Finance School Meal Protocol.
Testing identified that free school meals are only provided to those for whom eligibility has been confirmed and retained.
School Budget
The control environment in relation to the School Budget is considered to be effective with opportunity for improvement.
A regular review of the budget is undertaken by the Headteacher and details of the School's budgetary position is reported to the Governing Body at every 
meeting. However, during the sample period examined, instances were identified where there was a delay between the receipt of income / notification of 
income and the subsequent update onto SIMS, and this report recommends that details of all income received should be updated to SIMS as soon as it is 
received to ensure that the budgetary information is up to date and accurate.
Pupil numbers were reviewed and no discrepancies were noted.
Data Protection & Security
The control environment in relation to Data Protection & Security is considered to be effective with opportunity for improvement.
The School is registered with the Information Commissioner. School data is backed up regularly. However, it was noted that members of staff regularly take 
items of School equipment home but no formal record is in place to record this. In addition, IT equipment is not marked up as property of the School.
Implementation of the recommendations contained within this report will enhance the control environment further.

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS:
REPORT 
REF. & 

PRIORITY
FINDING RECOMMENDATION IMPLEMENTATION 

DATE

5.1.1 Section 2.9 of the Scheme for Financing Schools states that:
'Governing bodies are required to establish a register of business 

The missing declaration for the new 
Governor should be completed immediately.

31 October 2018

T
udalen 80



SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS:
REPORT 
REF. & 

PRIORITY
FINDING RECOMMENDATION IMPLEMENTATION 

DATE

Medium interests...which lists for each member of the governing body and the 
Head Teacher any business interests they or any member of their 
immediate family have. The register must be kept up-to-date by 
notification of changes from governors and the Head Teacher, and 
through an annual review process'.

Although a register has been established at the School, the declaration 
for one Governor was not in place.

Note: it is acknowledged that this was in respect of a new Governor.

Thereafter, declaration of interests should be 
updated at least annually.

5.1.2

Medium

All statutory policies and documents are in place at the School. 

However, it was not evident within the Governing Body minutes that 
the following had been formally presented and ratified:

 Data Protection Policy
 Equality Policy
 Pay Policy 
 Positive Behaviour Policy
 Action Plan following School Inspection 
 Assessment Arrangements
 Freedom of Information Publication Scheme

The Headteacher and Governing Body 
should ensure that they implement a rolling 
programme to review all Policies. This will 
ensure that all Policies are up to date and 
reflect the current practices at the School. 

Any policies that are updated/amended need 
to be presented to the Governing Body for 
ratification with a record held of this 
(recorded via the minutes). Details should be 
captured on the document covers i.e. date 
reviewed, date to be reviewed, signed and 
dated.

31 October 2018

5.2.1

Medium

Section 2.21 of Keeping Learners Safe: The role of local authorities, 
governing bodies and proprietors of independent schools under the 
Education Act 2002 (WAG circular 158/2015) states that:
'Governing Bodies should ensure that all staff and volunteers who work 

In respect of the 2 members of staff 
identified, the relevant training should be 
undertaken as soon as possible with 
evidence retained at the School. 

31 October 2018

T
udalen 81



SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS:
REPORT 
REF. & 

PRIORITY
FINDING RECOMMENDATION IMPLEMENTATION 

DATE

with children undertake appropriate training to equip them with the 
knowledge and skills that are necessary to carry out their 
responsibilities for child protection effectively, which is kept up to date 
by refresher training'.

Although it was established that Level 1 training was provided to the 
whole school on 21st November 2017, there was 1 member of staff 
who did not undertake the training as she was on maternity leave at 
the time. During the fieldwork it was noted that the member of staff had 
since returned to work;  however there was no evidence of refresher 
training. 

Audit testing also established that one  Level 3 Training Certificate for 
one member of staff had expired.

Note: The current requirements are that:
 Whilst Level 1 refresher training can be 

provided annually and  in-house by the 
School, it also needs to be delivered 
once every 3 years by a member of the 
Council’s Safeguarding Team.

 Level 3 training is required every 2 years.

5.3.1

High

At the time of the audit, issues were noted in respect of the Private 
Fund Ledger not being kept up-to-date:

 Discussions with the School Clerk prior to the commencement 
of the Audit fieldwork (May 2018) identified that the Private 
Fund Ledger had not been updated for the current academic 
year.

 Deposits of income made during the previous week had not 
been recorded (13 deposits amounting to £960.10).

 1 payment of £120.00 in respect of a deposit for Llangrannog 
appeared on the Ledger although the actual payment entry 
was incorrectly recorded as a Year 3 / 4 trip to Cantref.

In addition to the above, there was no central record of daily income 
being maintained. Instead, the Clerk was maintaining individual trip 

All income and expenditure should be 
promptly and clearly recorded on the Private 
Fund Ledger -  this will help to ensure that an 
accurate running balance is in place.

In addition to the individual trip / activity 
records, a central Record of Daily Income 
should be maintained by the Treasurer.  This 
form should be completed as and when the 
Treasurer receives any income, and 
supported by the signatures of the two 
persons involved.

When income is subsequently banked the 

Implemented 

T
udalen 82



SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS:
REPORT 
REF. & 

PRIORITY
FINDING RECOMMENDATION IMPLEMENTATION 

DATE

records. amounts should be totalled and ruled off.

These records will then enable an 
appropriate bank reconciliation to be 
undertaken (see 5.3.2).

5.3.2

High

Appendix 2, point 1.2(d) of the School Private Fund Regulations states:
'At the end of each month the ledger must be printed, reconciled to the 
bank statements, signed and dated to evidence the reconciliation. 
Printed reconciliations must be kept securely on file and retained in line 
with the Retention of Records Regulations (i.e. 6 years plus the year of 
account)'

Whilst all bank statements show evidence of a check (i.e. items are 
ticked as checked) the bank statements are not signed and dated by 
the person undertaking the bank reconciliation exercise.

Furthermore, and with reference to 5.3.1, the bank reconciliation 
exercise does not include any reconciliation to the School Private Fund 
Ledger.

At the end of each month, the ledger should 
be printed and reconciled to the bank 
statements, bank paying in book and cheque 
book.

The Bank Statements and the Ledger should 
be signed and dated as evidence of the 
reconciliation exercise being complete.

Implemented

5.3.3

Low

There are only 2 cheque signatories for the School Private Fund, both 
of whom are required to sign to authorise a cheque. 

A third cheque signatory should be 
appointed. This will ensure that cheques can  
be authorised and issued promptly (in the 
absence of ‘one’ signatory).

31 October 2018

5.4.1

High

Section 6 of  the Cardholder Manual for School document  issued by 
Procurement Services states that: 
‘Each Purchasing Card transaction should be recorded on the 

Details of all Purchase Card transactions 
should be promptly updated onto the 
Transaction Log.

Implemented

T
udalen 83



SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS:
REPORT 
REF. & 

PRIORITY
FINDING RECOMMENDATION IMPLEMENTATION 

DATE

transaction log as soon as the transaction is complete to ensure that 
no information is omitted.’

Section 6 of the Cardholder Manual for School document  issued by 
Procurement Services also states that :
"Cardholders must check that the bank statements match those on the 
transaction log".

Discussion at the School revealed that the Transaction Log is not 
updated until the Bank statement is received.  

The Transaction Log should then be used to 
reconcile the Bank Statements upon receipt, 
with the bank statements being ticked, signed 
and dated as evidence of the reconciliation 
taking place.

5.5.1

Medium

A sample of 5 non-order invoice payments were examined.

It is likely that for 3 of the 5 payments examined a prior request would 
have been made for the services provided / goods requested and 
consequently an official Purchase Order should have been raised on 
SIMS: 

 Reading Books from Oxford University Press;
 Skip hire  from P&G Skip hire; and
 Theatre Performance from Kinetic Theatre.

An order (confirmation if made by telephone) 
should be raised on SIMS as soon as a 
commitment to expenditure is known. 

This will ensure that the budgetary 
information on SIMS is as accurate as 
possible, has been authorised in the correct 
manner and that there is a hard copy of the 
‘order form‘ held at the school that details the 
items ordered which can be used to check 
the subsequent delivery of goods and 
relevant invoice.

Implemented

5.6.1

Medium

During the sample period (April to June 2018), 3 occasions were 
identified where there was a delay between the receipt of income / 
notification of income and the subsequent update onto SIMS.

Details of all income received should be 
updated to SIMS as soon as it is received to 
ensure that the budgetary information is up to 
date and accurate.

Implemented

5.7.1 Observations made during the audit visit identified that IT equipment is IT equipment should be marked as property 31 October 2018

T
udalen 84



SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS:
REPORT 
REF. & 

PRIORITY
FINDING RECOMMENDATION IMPLEMENTATION 

DATE

Low
not marked up as property of the School. of the School.

5.7.2

Low

In order to undertake work outside of the School, staff occasionally 
take I.T equipment home. However, no formal record of the removal is 
maintained.

Where items of School equipment are taken 
off site, a record should be maintained 
containing the date of removal, item of 
equipment, serial number, name of the 
person removing it and the date it was 
returned.

Implemented

T
udalen 85



AUDIT NAME: TREORCHY COMPREHENSIVE SCHOOL

DATE FINAL REPORT WAS ISSUED: 12/09/2018

INTRODUCTION
Treorchy Comprehensive School is a large 11 – 18 mixed Comprehensive School. There are 1644 pupils at the School, including 354 in the sixth form.
The total budget for the School for 2018/19 is £6,739,515. Treorchy Comprehensive School was last subject to a routine audit visit in January 2016.
The Headteacher has confirmed that this report will be presented to the Full Governing Body at their November 2018 meeting.

SCOPE & OBJECTIVES
All financial systems in operation at the school were considered and an assessment carried out in consultation with the Headteacher and Chair of 
Governors to identify those areas representing the highest potential risk to the School, and therefore necessitating review.
On the basis of this assessment, audit work was carried out on the following areas of administration: - 

 Governance
 Safeguarding
 School Income 
 Purchase Card
 School Private Fund 
 Purchasing

AUDIT OPINION
Safeguarding & Educational Visits
The control environment in relation to Safeguarding and Educational Visits is considered to be effective with opportunity for improvement.
Testing identified that all staff received the appropriate clearances before commencing duties in their posts.
The School have a Safeguarding and Child Protection Policy in place. Whilst this was reviewed and presented to the Governing Body in November 2017, 
this was found to be an older version from 2016 and not the most recent available at that time (June 2017).
The School’s Safeguarding Officer confirmed Level 1 Safeguarding training has been provided to School staff in various sessions throughout the year. 
However, whilst manual signed registers of attendance would have been completed at each session, these have subsequently been disposed of and were 
not available during the audit review to confirm attendance (an electronic record had been used with the details transferred from the manual registers). 
The School make use of the EVOLVE system to record details of all off-site visits and staff are suitably qualified to make use of the system in accordance 
with the document 'Planning and Approval Procedures for Educational Visits'. All trips examined had been entered onto EVOLVE and authorised in 
accordance with the designated timescales.

T
udalen 86



Governance
The control environment is respect of Governance is considered to be effective with opportunity for improvement.
The roles and responsibilities of the Governing Body and its Sub-Committees have been set out in writing. The Governing Body and its Sub-Committees 
had the requisite number of members and quorate levels for meetings were achieved. A Register of Business Interests is in place at the School and is 
updated annually.
Whilst attendance registers for full Governing Body meetings are maintained, this was not being done for Sub-Committee meetings. 
Whilst a delegated financial limit of £20k has been agreed for the Headteacher, no limits have been agreed for other staff responsible for committing the 
School to expenditure. These should be documented within the School’s Financial Procedures and agreed by the Governing Body.
School Income
The control environment is respect of School Income is considered to be effective with opportunity for improvement.
The School have developed a Finance Policy that contains details of how each area of administration should be managed. Staff responsible for identifying, 
receiving and recording income due to the School have been clearly defined and are aware of their duties.
Income is however collected from pupils by the Home Economics teacher to purchase ingredients with no income record maintained to confirm the amounts 
collected prior to transferring the income to the main office for banking. This report recommends that a suitable record is introduced if this practice is to 
continue.
The School have a number of groups/organisations who hire the School’s facilities and a Hire of Premises/Charging Policy has been introduced. Whilst 
each had an application of hire on file, these had not been completed by the group/organisation but by a member of staff at the School, and details on the 
application had not been fully completed i.e. dates of hire, signatures etc.
Purchase Card
The control environment is respect of the Purchase Card is considered to be effective.
There is one Purchase Card in operation at the School. A Transaction Log is maintained to record all expenditure; however it was found that this is not 
updated as and when purchases are made. 
There is a card sharing log in place to document occasions where the card is used by other members of staff.  All purchases reviewed were supported by 
appropriate receipts/invoices during the sample period examined.
School Private Fund 
The control environment in relation to the School Private Fund is considered to be effective and there are no findings contained within this report.
The Treasurer maintains detailed records, with an adequate audit trail of all income and expenditure transactions. The Ledger was found to be of an 
appropriate format and was up to date at the time of the review.  Income is banked weekly and the account reconciled to the bank statements monthly.
For the current academic year all expenditure incurred was solely for the benefit of the pupils / School in accordance with the School Private Fund 
Regulations and all items of expenditure were supported with receipts / invoices.
Purchasing 
The control environment in relation to Purchasing is considered to be effective and there are no findings contained within this report.
From a sample of orders examined, all had been administered appropriately and correctly authorised, with SIMS updated accordingly with delivery and 

T
udalen 87



payment details.
Implementing the recommendations contained in the report will enhance the current levels of control at the School.

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS:
REPORT 
REF. & 

PRIORITY
FINDING RECOMMENDATION IMPLEMENTATION 

DATE

5.1.1

High

The School’s Child Safeguarding Policy was last reviewed by the 
Governing Body in November 2017.

Discussions with the Headteacher established that whilst the School 
were aware of the latest Cwm Taf Safeguarding Children Board 
(CTSCB) Model Safeguarding Policy, issued in June 2017 to all 
schools, they were not aware that the Policy should be adopted by the 
School.

As a result, requirements in regards to designated safeguarding staff 
and all other staff having to sign to confirm that they have received, 
read and understood the Child Safeguarding Policy have not been put 
in place.

Additionally, examination of the School’s website identified that whilst 
there is a Safeguarding Policy on the website, it is not the most recent 
version that was presented to Governors in November 2017.

The School should adopt the Cwm Taf 
Safeguarding Children Board (CTSCB) 
Safeguarding Policy.

Once the revised Safeguarding Policy has 
been formally adopted and agreed by the 
Governing Body, each member of staff 
should sign to demonstrate that they have 
received, read and understood the 
Safeguarding Policy. 

This Policy should also be updated to the 
School‘s website once adopted.

Implemented

5.1.2

High

Section 2.21 of Keeping Learners Safe: The role of local authorities, 
governing bodies and proprietors of independent Schools under the 
Education Act 2002 (WAG circular 158/2015) states that:
'Governing Bodies should ensure that all staff and volunteers who work 
with children undertake appropriate training to equip them with the 
knowledge and skills that are necessary to carry out their 
responsibilities for child protection effectively, which is kept up to date 

A formal signed record should be made each 
time any member of staff at the School 
undertakes safeguarding training.

Implemented

T
udalen 88



SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS:
REPORT 
REF. & 

PRIORITY
FINDING RECOMMENDATION IMPLEMENTATION 

DATE

by refresher training'.

The School’s Safeguarding Officer confirmed Level 1 Safeguarding 
training had been provided to School staff in various sessions 
throughout the year. However, the Safeguarding Officer confirmed that 
whilst manual signed registers of attendance would have been 
completed at each session, these have since been disposed of with the 
details being transferred to an electronic record of those staff in 
attendance at these meetings. 

These indicated that all staff employed by the School have undertaken 
the training (or if not appropriate reasons were provided as to why they 
have not e.g. maternity, sickness etc). 

However as the record is electronic and no signature present, this does 
not constitute an acceptable register of attendance.

5.2.1

Medium

Within the School’s Financial Procedures the Headteacher has been 
delegated authority to spend and vire up to £20k.

However, whilst the Policy refers to other budget holders being 
responsible for their own delegated budgets, it is not specific as to who 
these budget holders are and also the 'upper' limit for individual 
purchases made. 

This principle also applies in respect of purchases made on the School 
Purchase Card, with no delegated limits in place for the staff who use it 
or limitations.

The School’s Financial Procedures should be 
enhanced to confirm the financial limits for 
delegated authority, to ensure that a 
permanent record of the limits and authorised 
staff is available at the School.

Once completed, the Policy should be 
presented to the Governing Body for 
approval and issued to all appropriate 
members of staff. The School should ensure 
that this is regularly reviewed and updated 
going forward.

31 October 2018

T
udalen 89



SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS:
REPORT 
REF. & 

PRIORITY
FINDING RECOMMENDATION IMPLEMENTATION 

DATE

NB: Any revisions to the Policy should take 
into account recommendations raised within 
this report.

5.2.2

Medium

Section 43(d) of The Government of Maintained Schools (Wales) 
Regulations 2005 states:
'The Clerk to the Governing Body must maintain a register of 
governors' attendance at meetings'

Whilst attendance registers are maintained for Full Governing Body 
meetings, they are not maintained for any Sub-Committee meetings.

The Clerk to the Governing Body should 
retain registers of Governor attendance for all 
Governing Body meetings (including Sub-
Committees).

All Governing Body members should ensure 
that they sign to confirm their attendance.

Implemented

5.3.1

Low

Discussions at the School revealed that the Home Economics Teacher 
is responsible for making food purchases.

Money is collected from some pupils (but not all) for food items to be 
cooked during lessons. Purchases are made using the money 
collected but no record of this is maintained.

In the absence of a record detailing all income received and 
expenditure incurred, it is not possible to ensure that all transactions 
are appropriate and can be accounted for.

The Headteacher should determine if the 
Home Economics Teacher is to continue 
collecting money from pupils.

If so, income records of money collected from 
pupils should be maintained along with 
receipts / vouchers to support expenditure 
incurred.

Implemented

5.3.2

Medium

The School has a comprehensive Lettings Policy in place and currently 
hires out the premises to a variety of organisations.

Examination of the 11 current hires at the School established that each 
had an application form for hire on file. However, the following issues 

In accordance with the system intended by 
the School, Management should ensure all 
application forms for the hire of facilities are 
fully completed by hirers and a copy retained 
at the school.

Implemented

T
udalen 90



SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS:
REPORT 
REF. & 

PRIORITY
FINDING RECOMMENDATION IMPLEMENTATION 

DATE

were identified: - 
 Only 2 of the 11 application forms had been signed by the 

hirer.
 Each form has been completed by the same person 

(handwriting is the same on each) as opposed to the hirer.
 Only 1 of the application forms has a start and end date for the 

period of hire, with 3 forms having no start or end date and the 
other 7 forms having start dates but only 'ongoing' as the end 
date.

5.4.1

Medium

Section 6 of  the Cardholder Manual for Schools issued by 
Procurement Services states that:
'Each Purchasing Card transaction should be recorded on the 
transaction log as soon as the transaction is complete to ensure that 
no information is omitted'. 

The School has one purchase card with a transaction log maintained 
electronically. 

Examination of the transaction log confirmed that the latest 
transactions have not been updated to the log, although supporting 
receipts/invoices were available.

Details of all Purchase Card transactions 
should be promptly updated onto the 
transaction logs as and when a purchase has 
been made.

ImplementedT
udalen 91



EDUCATION & INCLUSION

AUDIT NAME: Y PANT COMPREHENSIVE SCHOOL - FOLLOW UP

DATE FINAL REPORT WAS ISSUED: 16/10/2018

INTRODUCTION
Y Pant Comprehensive School was last subject to a routine Internal Audit in June 2017. At this time, the overall control environment in respect of the 
School's financial and governance arrangements was considered to be insufficient and required improvement.
Following the presentation of the final report to Audit Committee, a follow-up review was requested to ascertain whether recommendations made at the time 
have been successfully implemented.
This audit report provides the outcome of the follow up review that has now been completed.
The Headteacher has confirmed that this report will be presented to the Full Governing Body at its meeting scheduled for the 14th November 2018.

SCOPE & OBJECTIVES
Having given sufficient time for Management to implement the previous recommendations, the objective of this review was to: 

 Establish the status of all recommendations raised within the previous report.

AUDIT OPINION
This follow up review concludes that the overall control environment in relation to the School's financial and governance arrangements has improved since 
the previous review, but work continues in respect of implementing all recommendations in their entirety.
The previous audit report contained 34 recommendations. This follow-up review has established that 7 recommendations had still not been implemented, 
with 15 partially implemented and 12 implemented. Of the 7 recommendations that remain not implemented, 5 are High Priority.
Following a detailed follow-up audit review of the previous recommendations, the status of reach recommendation is shown below:

 Implemented Not Implemented Partially 
Implemented

SAFEGUARDING

HIGH 1 - 1
MEDIUM - - -
LOW - - 1

GOVERNANCE

HIGH 2 - 1
MEDIUM 1 - -

T
udalen 92



LOW 1 - -
SCHOOL INCOME
HIGH 1 3 1
MEDIUM - - 1
LOW - - -
SCHOOL PRIVATE FUND
HIGH 2 - 2
MEDIUM 1 - 3
LOW - - -
PURCHASE CARD
HIGH - - 4
MEDIUM 2 - -
LOW - - -
PURCHASING
HIGH - 2 -
MEDIUM 1 1 -
LOW - - -
ASSETS
HIGH - - -
MEDIUM - 1 1
LOW - - -
TOTALS 12 7 15

A full copy of the Internal Audit report has been provided to Members, as follows:

T
udalen 93



5.1 SAFEGUARDING

REF & 
PRIORITY

ORIGINAL 
FINDING

ORIGINAL 
RECOMMENDATION

ORIGINAL 
MANAGEMENT 

RESPONSE

OUTCOME OF THE FOLLOW-UP AUDIT NEW 
MANAGEMENT 

RESPONSE

The Acting Headteacher 
should ensure that the 
School holds and 
maintains an up to date 
record of all staff that 
work at the School both 
permanently and 
temporarily i.e. supply 
teachers, student 
teachers, volunteers etc. 
This should detail their 
names, DBS reference 
number and the date of 
check.

Confirmed to have been partially implemented.

Management indicated this recommendation had been implemented in the 
initial audit report and partially implemented when scoping this follow up 
review, with audit testing confirming that the recommendation has been 
partially implemented.

The School staff list detailing staff DBS reference numbers was compared to 
the current list of staff employed at the School as provided by Vision Support.

It was noted that there are 6 members of staff not included on the School list 
that are included on the VISION list. 

Note: Audit testing confirmed all staff have a DBS check, and that 3 staff had 
not commenced employment at the school at the time of review.

Agreed.

Central list of all staff 
(permanent, temporary 
and volunteer) to be 
compiled detailing 
names, DBS reference 
and date of check.

ORIGINAL 
RESPONSIBILITY & 

TARGET DATE

UPDATED RECOMMENDATION UPDATED 
RESPONSIBILITY & 

TARGET DATE

5.1.1

Low

Whilst 
Internal Audit 
is able to 
provide 
assurance 
that all staff 
at the School 
received a 
DBS check 
prior to 
commencing 
in post, the 
School did 
not have the 
evidence 
available to 
confirm this. 

Note: Audit 
testing was 
undertaken 
based upon 
the 
information 
contained 
within the 
Council’s 
Vision HR 
system.

SLT Link
Business/Manager

31st October 2017

This will be 
actioned with a 
DBS register 
being held in 
the general 
office.

Copies of DBS 
registrations 
from Agencies 
to be included.

Management should ensure that the School holds and maintains an up to 
date record of all staff that work at the School both permanently and 
temporarily i.e. supply teachers, student teachers, volunteers etc. This 
should detail their names, DBS reference number and the date of check.

Headteacher

January 2019

T
udalen 94



REF & 
PRIORITY

ORIGINAL 
FINDING

ORIGINAL 
RECOMMENDATION

ORIGINAL 
MANAGEMENT 

RESPONSE

OUTCOME OF THE FOLLOW-UP AUDIT NEW 
MANAGEMENT RESPONSE

The Acting 
Headteacher should 
ensure that a formal 
training record is put in 
place at the School and 
updated as and when 
training is delivered / 
received.

Confirmed to have been partially implemented.

Management indicated this recommendation 
had been implemented in the initial audit report 
and partially implemented when scoping this 
follow up review, with audit testing confirming 
that the recommendation has been partially 
implemented.

Although it was established that Level 1 training 
was provided to the whole School on 11th 
January 2018, 25th January 2018 and 28th 
February 2018, the School were unable to 
demonstrate that 18 members of staff have 
received formal training (which includes 7 full-
time and 11 Casual Exam Invigilators).

Agreed.

Addition to above central list 
detailing safeguarding 
training. All staff not up to 
the level required for their 
role will be provided with 
training.

ORIGINAL 
RESPONSIBILITY & 

TARGET DATE

UPDATED RECOMMENDATION UPDATED 
RESPONSIBILITY & 

TARGET DATE

5.1.2

High

Section 2.21 of Keeping Learners Safe: 
The role of local authorities, governing 
bodies and proprietors of independent 
Schools under the Education Act 2002 
(WAG circular 158/2015) states that:

'Governing Bodies should ensure that 
all staff and volunteers who work with 
children undertake appropriate training 
to equip them with the knowledge and 
skills that are necessary to carry out 
their responsibilities for child protection 
effectively, which is kept up to date by 
refresher training'.

It was established that Level 1 
Safeguarding training was last provided 
to School staff by a Council 
Safeguarding Officer in February 2013. 

The School’s designated Safeguarding 
Officer stated that since February 2013, 
she has provided Level 1 Safeguarding 
training to staff as she has been 
delegated the authority to provide 
annual refresher training at the School 
by the Council’s Safeguarding team.

Whilst the School’s designated 
Safeguarding Officer has a number of 
training certificates for staff who have 
attended training, they don't complete a 
training attendance record for in School 
training sessions / refresher training.

Senior Safeguarding 
Officer (Assistant 

Headteacher)

31st December 2017

This will be 
actioned with a 
training register 
being held in 
the 
Safeguarding 
Officer’s office.

As a minimum, Level 1 Safeguarding training 
should be arranged for all 18 members staff that 
were not present on the latest training dates as 
soon as possible.

Headteacher & 
Schools Safeguarding Officer

January 2019

T
udalen 95



REF & 
PRIORITY

ORIGINAL 
FINDING

ORIGINAL 
RECOMMENDATION

ORIGINAL 
MANAGEMENT 

RESPONSE 

OUTCOME OF THE FOLLOW-UP AUDIT NEW 
MANAGEMENT     

RESPONSE

Before a School engages 
with an external entity for 
the provision of services, 
they must review the 
employment status.

Note: The school should 
be aware of the change in 
requirements that link to 
HMRC IR35.

Confirmed to have been implemented.

Management indicated this recommendation 
had been implemented in the initial audit 
report and when scoping this follow up 
review. Audit testing has confirmed that the 
recommendation has been implemented.

Following the previous Audit review, 5 of the 
6 Music Teachers / Tutors are now 
employed by the RCT Music Service and the 
remaining Music Tutor has now been set up 
as a limited company and is being paid 
under the IR35 rules. 

In terms of the remaining teacher, the School 
had received the necessary checks from 
RCT and  is now being set up as a Casual 
Instructor on the School's payroll.

Not required as original 
recommendation 
implemented.

ORIGINAL 
RESPONSIBILITY & 

TARGET DATE

UPDATED RECOMMENDATION UPDATED 
RESPONSIBILITY & 

TARGET DATE

5.1.3

High

Examination of the budget 
expenditure for the current financial 
year identified payments are being 
made to 7 individuals in respect of 
music tuition.

No HMRC questionnaire was 
completed prior to appointing each 
of these tutors and hence, no ESI 
reference number was obtained 
(these tutors were appointed prior 
to the introduction of the revised 
requirements relating to IR35).

Business/Site Manager

Implemented

There are currently 6 
music teachers.

5 have now 
transferred to RCT’s 
Music Service.

The remaining 
teacher has set up a 
limited company and 
is shortly to provide 
the required 
evidence for RCT’s 
payroll section to 
process.

Not Applicable. Not Applicable

T
udalen 96



5.2 GOVERNANCE

REF & 
PRIORITY

ORIGINAL 
FINDING

ORIGINAL 
RECOMMENDATION

ORIGINAL 
MANAGEMENT 

RESPONSE

OUTCOME OF THE FOLLOW-UP AUDIT NEW 
MANAGEMENT     

RESPONSE

The Acting Headteacher should 
ensure that the School’s Financial 
Procedure document is reviewed and 
updated to take account of all of the 
recommendations within this report.

 For example, it should include a 
scheme of delegation, to formally 
record the Acting Headteacher’s 
financial limits for expenditure 
and budget virements, together 
with any other members of staff 
who can commit the School to 
expenditure. 

Once updated, the Procedure should 
be presented to the Governing Body 
for ratification.

Confirmed to have been partially implemented.

Management indicated this recommendation had 
been implemented in the initial audit report and 
when scoping this follow up review. Audit testing 
has confirmed that the recommendation has been 
partially implemented.

Since the last review, the School have reviewed 
their Financial Procedures document and 
presented it to the Governing Body on the 19th 
December 2017.

However, a review of this document revealed that 
it contains only basic details of the roles / 
responsibilities of individual staff involved in the 
School's areas of financial administration.

Agreed.

An updated Financial 
Procedures document will 
include all system 
processes highlighting 
individual staff 
responsibilities with regard 
to financial administration. 

Approval will then be sought 
by the Governing Body.

ORIGINAL RESPONSIBILITY & 
TARGET DATE 

UPDATED RECOMMENDATION UPDATED 
RESPONSIBILITY & 

TARGET DATE

5.2.1

High

The current Financial 
Procedure document in 
place at the School 
requires review and 
updating, for example:
 It contains the 

previous 
Headteachers details 
and not the current 
Acting Headteacher.

 It names the previous 
Headteacher as 
having, amongst 
other responsibilities, 
delegated financial 
limits up to £10k. 

 It does not identify 
any other staff as 
having delegated 
spending limits. 

 It contains only basic 
details regarding the 
roles / responsibilities 
of individual staff 
involved in several 
(not all) of the 
School's areas of 
administration. 

 The document does 
not refer to the 
administration and 
collection / banking 
of income for the hire 
of facilities.

Acting Headteacher

Business/Site Manager

Autumn Term 2017

A revised 
document will be 
presented to the 
Finance and 
Buildings 
Committee and 
then the 
Governing Body. 

The Financial Procedures should be enhanced to 
define system processes and the individual staff 
responsibilities within them across all areas of the 
School's financial administration.

Once completed, the Procedures should again be 
presented to the Governing Body for approval and 
issued to all appropriate members of staff.

NB: Any revision to the Policy should take into 
account recommendations raised elsewhere in 
this report.

Headteacher & School 
Business Manager

November 2018

T
udalen 97



REF & 
PRIORITY

ORIGINAL 
FINDING

ORIGINAL 
RECOMMENDATION

ORIGINAL 
MANAGEMENT 

RESPONSE

OUTCOME OF THE FOLLOW-UP AUDIT NEW 
MANAGEMENT     

RESPONSE

The School continue to 
endeavour to fill the 
Governor vacancy as 
soon as possible.

Confirmed to have been implemented.

Management indicated this 
recommendation had been implemented in 
the initial audit report and when scoping 
this follow up review. Audit testing has 
confirmed that the recommendation has 
been implemented with no Governor 
vacancies at the time of review.

Not required as original 
recommendation 
implemented.

ORIGINAL 
RESPONSIBILITY & 

TARGET DATE

UPDATED RECOMMENDATION UPDATED RESPONSIBILITY 
& TARGET DATE

5.2.2

Low

Examination of the Governing Body 
structure revealed that there is 
currently 1 parent governor vacancy. 
At the time of the audit review, the 
School were in the process of 
attempting to fill this vacancy.

It is acknowledged that, to date, this 
has not had a detrimental effect on 
meetings being able to be quorate etc.

Acting Headteacher

Business/Site Manager

Implemented

Actioned.

Not Applicable. Not Applicable

T
udalen 98



REF & 
PRIORITY

ORIGINAL 
FINDING

ORIGINAL 
RECOMMENDATION

ORIGINAL 
MANAGEMENT 

RESPONSE

OUTCOME OF THE FOLLOW-UP AUDIT NEW 
MANAGEMENT                      

RESPONSE

It should be ensured that 
Governors sign the 
attendance registers for all 
Governing Body and Sub-
Committee meetings, with 
these being retained at the 
School.

Confirmed to have been implemented.

Management indicated this recommendation had 
been implemented in the initial audit report and when 
scoping this follow up review. Audit testing has 
confirmed that the recommendation has been 
implemented, with attendance registers for meetings 
now all completed and retained.

Not required as original 
recommendation implemented.

ORIGINAL 
RESPONSIBILITY & 

TARGET DATE 

UPDATED RECOMMENDATION UPDATED 
RESPONSIBILITY & 

TARGET DATE

5.2.3

Medium

Attendance registers 
for Governing Body and 
Sub-Committee 
meetings are not 
always completed and 
retained.

Clerk to the Governing Body

Implemented

Agreed and 
usually 
undertaken.

Not Applicable. Not Applicable

T
udalen 99



REF & 
PRIORITY

ORIGINAL 
FINDING

ORIGINAL 
RECOMMENDATION

ORIGINAL 
MANAGEMENT 

RESPONSE

OUTCOME OF THE FOLLOW-UP 
AUDIT

NEW 
MANAGEMENT                      

RESPONSE

The Acting Headteacher should collate a 
schedule of all Policies and Procedures 
that are in place at the School and 
ensure that they are all reviewed in a 
timely manner, and following review, 
they must be presented to the 
Governing Body for ratification.

The School should implement a Policy 
review process and this could be 
incorporated into the Safeguarding 
Policy.

Confirmed to have been 
implemented.

Management indicated this 
recommendation had been 
implemented in the initial audit 
report and when scoping this follow 
up review. Audit testing confirmed 
that the recommendation has been 
implemented, with all Policies and 
Procedures reviewed and in place.

Not required as original 
recommendation implemented.

ORIGINAL RESPONSIBILITY & 
TARGET DATE

UPDATED RECOMMENDATION UPDATED 
RESPONSIBILITY & 

TARGET DATE

5.2.4

High

Whilst the School was able 
to provide copies of all 
required Policies and 
Procedures, it was not 
able to demonstrate that 
they are reviewed 
regularly, updated and 
ratified by the Governing 
Body.

For example, the School’s 
Staff Disciplinary Policy 
was dated September 
2013, and was ratified by 
the Governing Body in 
March 2014. It has not 
been subject to review 
since this date.

Acting Headteacher

SLT

GB Committees

Link Governors

Autumn Term 2017

A new system has 
been introduced with 
all policies being 
reviewed and 
updated. This 
includes delegation 
to sub committees 
and link governors 
prior to ratification by 
the Full Governing 
Body. 

Not Applicable. Not Applicable

T
udalen 100



REF & 
PRIORITY

ORIGINAL 
FINDING

ORIGINAL 
RECOMMENDATION

ORIGINAL 
MANAGEMENT 

RESPONSE

OUTCOME OF THE FOLLOW-
UP AUDIT

NEW 
MANAGEMENT                      

RESPONSE

Declarations for all 
Governors should be 
obtained immediately. 

Moving forward, the School 
should ensure that the 
register of declarations is a 
‘live’ document and 
updated as and when 
required.

Confirmed to have been 
implemented.

Management indicated this 
recommendation had been 
implemented in the initial audit 
report and when scoping this 
follow up review. Audit testing 
has confirmed that the 
recommendation has been 
implemented with a Register of 
Business Interests available for 
all current Governors.

Not required as original 
recommendation implemented.

ORIGINAL 
RESPONSIBILITY & 

TARGET DATE

UPDATED 
RECOMMENDATION

UPDATED 
RESPONSIBILITY & 

TARGET DATE

5.2.5

High

Section 2.9 of the Scheme for Financing 
Schools states that:

'Governing bodies are required to establish a 
register of business interests...which lists for 
each member of the governing body and the 
Head Teacher any business interests they or 
any member of their immediate family have. 
The register must be kept up-to-date by 
notification of changes from governors and 
the Head Teacher, and through an annual 
review process'.

Internal Audit testing confirmed that no 
declarations were present for 7 Governors  
and the declaration in respect of another 
Governor  had not been dated.

Clerk to the Governing 
Body

31st October 2017

Register Being 
Updated with 
absent governors 
being chased up.

Not Applicable. Not Applicable

T
udalen 101



5.3 SCHOOL INCOME

REF & 
PRIORITY

ORIGINAL 
FINDING

ORIGINAL 
RECOMMENDATION

ORIGINAL 
MANAGEMENT 

RESPONSE

OUTCOME OF THE FOLLOW-UP 
AUDIT

NEW 
MANAGEMENT                      

RESPONSE

The Acting Headteacher should 
ensure that all bookings are 
processed in accordance with the 
requirements contained within the 
Hire Procedures.

For example, for all bookings, it 
must be evidenced that:
 The acting Headteacher has 

approved them.
 Hirers have formally accepted 

the School’s Terms & 
Conditions.

 No payment card transactions 
should be administered by 
staff, on behalf of hirers.

Processes need to put into place to 
ensure all income collected via 
OpenPlay are input on to SIMS as 
and when it is collected, to ensure 
SIMS is accurately maintained.

The revised instructions / guidance 
should be put into place with 
immediate effect.

ORIGINAL RESPONSIBILITY & 
TARGET DATE

5.3.1

High

The School has recently adopted a new 
arrangement in respect of how users of 
facilities can hire them.

The OpenPlay system is an on-line 
system that allows the public to book 
the hire directly, with the intention being 
that invoices will be produced directly 
from the system for payment, or hirers 
can pay online using their debit/credit 
card. These online payments, will then 
be forwarded by OpenPlay to the 
School. 

Prior to adopting the new system, the 
school failed to consider the following 
controls:
 All hires need to be formally 

authorised by the Headteacher.
 Hirers need to sign the Booking Form 

and agree with the School’s Terms & 
Conditions of hire. If these 
documents are only available online, 
this is not possible.

 In the event that a member of public 
does not wish to use the on-line tool, 
staff have indicated that they could 
either ring up or go to the School. 
Staff suggested they intend on taking 
personal and payment card details off 
hirers and manually input them on to 
OpenPlay on their behalf. 

(CONTINUED)

Acting Headteacher

Business/Site Manager

31st October 2017

This is a newly 
introduced system 
aimed to improve 
the ease and 
efficiency of the 
school lettings the 
workload for which 
has grown 
significantly due to 
the new facilities 
created by the new 
development.

At the time of the 
audit work was in 
progress aimed at 
achieving the 
procedures and 
controls herein 
recommended.

Updated procedures 
which incorporate 
these 
recommendations 
will be presented to 
the Finance and 
Buildings 
Committee.

Confirmed to have not been 
implemented.

Management indicated this 
recommendation had been 
implemented in the initial audit 
report and partially implemented 
when scoping this follow up review, 
but audit testing has confirmed that 
the recommendation has not been 
implemented.

The School continue to use 
OpenPlay, which is an on-line 
system that allows the public to book 
the hire directly, with the intention 
being that invoices will be produced 
directly from the system for 
payment, or hirers can pay online 
using their debit/credit card. These 
online payments are then forwarded 
by OpenPlay to the School.

Since September 2017, £27,098.00 
has been collected in respect of hire 
of facilities. At the time of review, 
there were 12 invoices outstanding 
over 21 days old amounting to 
£1,781.00. 

(CONTINUED)

Agreed.

A file to be 
compiled of all 
organisations who 
hire the school and 
facilities including:

 Signed 
authorisation by 
the Headteacher

 School’s terms of 
the letting signed 
by organisation

 Insurance and 
other 
documentation of 
organisation

Look into an 
efficient system 
where invoices 
raised through 
OpenPlay are 
copied to Business 
Manager who can 
then chase up. Will 
review use of FMS 
Accounts 
Receivable. 

[Flexibility must be 
maintained for 
organisations]

T
udalen 102



REF & 
PRIORITY

ORIGINAL 
FINDING

OUTCOME OF THE FOLLOW-UP AUDIT UPDATED 
RESPONSIBILITY & 

TARGET DATE

However, discussions with the Clerical Assistant identified that as soon as any cash/cheque income is received, the 
OpenPlay system is updated accordingly with details of the income, with the cash / cheques then passed for 
banking. 

However, for all other means of payment, i.e. direct payments via the bank, OpenPlay cannot be updated until the 
School Business Manager provides notification of these amounts once the Bank Reconciliation exercise has been 
undertaken, which can be a delay of up to 6 weeks.

It was identified that all income received in respect of the hire of facilities is entered onto SIMS as non-invoiced 
income as invoices are not being raised on SIMS (see 5.3.5).

In addition, the following was found: -

 There are no formal booking forms (an email confirmation of the booking is issued to the hirer instead)
 Hires are not formally authorised by the Headteacher
 Hirers do not sign any agreement/booking form
 There are no Terms and Conditions for the hire, including payment terms, and arrears procedures.
 Details of Public Liability Insurance are not being requested
 VAT exemption forms had been issued to 18 hirers. From these 18 users, only 7 forms have been returned, whilst 

only 2 have actually been signed. Additionally, from a sample of 12 users, 11 have not been charged VAT

UPDATED RECOMMENDATION

Continued However, this is not 
permitted in 
accordance with the 
requirements of the 
Payment Card Industry 
(PCI).

 The School’s Standard 
Terms & Conditions 
have not been updated 
to reflect the new on-
line arrangement.

 There is no link from 
OpenPlay to SIMS, so 
SIMS would need to be 
updated with invoices 
raised and also 
payments received as 
and when they occur.

 The ability to check for 
VAT exemption for 
block bookings has not 
been fully considered.

 There is uncertainty in 
respect of how the 
School could manage 
discounts that they 
offer.

Management should ensure that the hire of facilities is administered appropriately.

This should include: - 

 Booking forms should be updated to capture all required details for future requests for hire including the Terms 
and Conditions of hire, Public Liability Insurances, evidence required from affiliated groups for VAT exemptions 
etc. These booking forms should also be signed by the hirers.

 All bookings should be authorised by the Headteacher before the hire commences.
 Processes need to be put in place to ensure all income collected via OpenPlay is input on to SIMS as and when it 

is collected to ensure SIMS is accurately maintained.

The revised instructions / guidance should be put into place with immediate effect.

Headteacher, School 
Business Manager & 
Estates and Lettings 

Manager

January 2019

T
udalen 103



REF & 
PRIORITY

ORIGINAL 
FINDING

ORIGINAL 
RECOMMENDATION

ORIGINAL 
MANAGEMENT 

RESPONSE

OUTCOME OF THE FOLLOW-UP AUDIT NEW 
MANAGEMENT                      

RESPONSE

The School's Charging 
Policy should be reviewed 
and updated to ensure it 
reflects current hire and 
chargeable activities. 
Costs in relation to these 
should be included as 
well as documenting the 
processes for dealing with 
arrears. Additionally, it 
should include details 
regarding the OpenPlay 
booking system that the 
School have introduced.

The Policy should be 
presented to the 
Governing Body for 
endorsement, with a 
frequency of future review 
determined. 

Confirmed to have been implemented.

Management indicated this recommendation 
had been implemented in the initial audit 
report and when scoping this follow up review. 
Audit testing has confirmed that the 
recommendation has been implemented, with 
the Charging Policy reviewed and updated 
appropriately.

Not required as original 
recommendation implemented.

ORIGINAL 
RESPONSIBILITY & 

TARGET DATE

UPDATED RECOMMENDATION UPDATED 
RESPONSIBILITY & 

TARGET DATE

5.3.2

High

The School has a Charging 
Policy, which was last 
updated March 2016.

Whilst the Policy contains 
details of hires and costs, the 
costs included do not match 
the current rates charged or 
refer to discounts that are 
offered by the School.

Additionally, it does not 
contain any detail about the 
OpenPlay online booking 
system that the School have 
introduced, and also no 
reference to the School policy 
in relation to arrears.

Acting Headteacher

Business/Site Manager

31st October 2017

An updated policy 
which incorporates 
these 
recommendations will 
be presented to the 
Finance and Buildings 
Committee.

Not Applicable. Not Applicable

T
udalen 104



REF & 
PRIORITY

ORIGINAL 
FINDING

ORIGINAL 
RECOMMENDATION

ORIGINAL 
MANAGEMENT 

RESPONSE

OUTCOME OF THE FOLLOW-UP AUDIT NEW 
MANAGEMENT                      

RESPONSE

The Acting 
Headteacher should 
ensure that an 
appropriate 
segregation of duties is 
put in place in respect 
of raising invoices, 
updating SIMS and 
undertaking any 
subsequent bank 
reconciliation process.

Thereafter, updating 
SIMS and undertaking 
a bank reconciliation 
should be completed in 
a timely manner.

Confirmed to have been partially implemented.

Management indicated this recommendation had 
been implemented in the initial audit report and when 
scoping this follow up review. Audit testing has 
confirmed that the recommendation has been partially 
implemented.

The Clerical Assistant now raises all invoices, while 
the School Business Manager matches the income 
collected, updates the income onto SIMS and 
undertakes the bank reconciliation.

The current arrangements still do not demonstrate an 
appropriate segregation of duties.

In addition to the above control issues, the School 
Business Manager confirmed he does not update 
SIMS until receipt of bank statements and his 
subsequent bank reconciliation. As a consequence, 
SIMS is not up to date as and when income is 
collected and banked.

Agreed. 

Move to a working practice where 
income is inputted onto FMS as 
and when it is received.

ORIGINAL 
RESPONSIBILITY & 

TARGET DATE 

UPDATED RECOMMENDATION UPDATED 
RESPONSIBILITY & 

TARGET DATE

5.3.3

High

At the time of the 
fieldwork for this 
review, the Business 
Manager was 
responsible for:
 Raising all 

invoices
 Updating income 

onto SIMS
 Undertaking the 

bank 
reconciliation.

The current 
arrangements do not 
demonstrate an 
appropriate 
segregation of duties.

In addition to the 
above control issues:
 Income had not 

been updated to 
SIMS since 28th 
April 2017 and;

 A bank 
reconciliation had 
not been 
undertaken since 
29th April 2017. Acting Headteacher

Business/Site Manager

31st October 2017

The significant 
increase in workload 
associated with the 
whole school move 
meant that working 
practices were 
temporarily modified, 
hence the segregation 
of duties compromise 
and delays. It has 
always been the intent 
to act in a timely 
manner.

The Business Manager 
no longer raises 
invoices.

Management should ensure that an appropriate 
segregation of duties is put in place in respect of 
raising invoices, updating SIMS and undertaking any 
subsequent bank reconciliation process.

Thereafter, SIMS should be updated when income is 
collected and banked and the subsequent bank 
reconciliation process completed in a timely manner.

Headteacher & School Business 
Manager

December 2018

T
udalen 105



REF & 
PRIORITY

ORIGINAL 
FINDING

ORIGINAL 
RECOMMENDATION

ORIGINAL 
MANAGEMENT 

RESPONSE

OUTCOME OF THE FOLLOW-UP AUDIT NEW 
MANAGEMENT                      

RESPONSE

When income is collected 
by staff and transferred 
to the office to be 
counted and banked, the 
Record of Daily Income 
should be supported by 
the signatures of the two 
persons involved in 
receiving and counting.

Confirmed to have not been implemented.

Management indicated this recommendation 
had been implemented in the initial audit report 
and when scoping this follow up review. Audit 
testing has confirmed that the 
recommendation has not been implemented.

Agreed. 

Income receiving process to be 
reviewed to ensure that two signatures 
are given. However a very limited 
amount of income is received in cash 
since the introduction of online 
payments.

ORIGINAL 
RESPONSIBILITY & 

TARGET DATE 

UPDATED RECOMMENDATION UPDATED 
RESPONSIBILITY & 

TARGET DATE

5.3.4

High

Whilst it was 
confirmed that a 
central Record of 
Daily Income is 
maintained, the two 
members of staff 
involved in the 
handling of the 
income do not sign to 
confirm the amounts 
involved.

Acting Headteacher

Business/Site Manager

31st October 2017

To be actioned.

The introduction in 
September 2017 of on-
line payments via the 
RCT Civica E-Store for 
all school business will 
reduce the amount of 
cash/cheque handling.

When income is collected by staff and 
transferred to the office to be counted and 
banked, the Record of Daily Income should be 
supported by the signatures of the two persons 
involved in receiving and counting.

School Business Manager

January 2019

T
udalen 106



REF & 
PRIORITY

ORIGINAL 
FINDING

ORIGINAL 
RECOMMENDATION

ORIGINAL 
MANAGEMENT 

RESPONSE

OUTCOME OF THE FOLLOW-UP 
AUDIT

NEW 
MANAGEMENT                      

RESPONSE

The invoicing facility within 
SIMS should be used, which 
will alleviate the need for 
manual invoices to be 
produced and allow income 
received to be directly 
matched to the respective 
invoice.

All invoices (including the 
copy retained at the School) 
should be authorised by the 
Acting Headteacher.

Confirmed to have not been 
implemented.

Management indicated this 
recommendation had not been 
implemented in the initial audit report and 
when scoping this follow up review. Audit 
testing has confirmed that the 
recommendation has not been 
implemented, as the School and the 
Governing Body have determined that  
raising invoices using the Schools main 
accounting system is not necessary.

It is accepted that the invoices used now 
include the Council's VAT number and 
that payment must be made within 21 
days.

Not Agreed.  

The FMS Accounts receivable is 
unsatisfactory in the management 
of multiple lettings; however the 
new Business Manager will review 
after receiving further FMS training.

ORIGINAL 
RESPONSIBILITY & 

TARGET DATE 

UPDATED RECOMMENDATION UPDATED 
RESPONSIBILITY & 

TARGET DATE

5.3.5

High

The School are not 
using the SIMS 
invoicing facility when 
issuing requests for 
monies owed. 

The School have their 
own invoice template. 
Invoices do not include 
the Council's VAT 
number and are not 
signed as authorised by 
the Acting Headteacher.

N/A

Not Agreed.  The 
invoicing module is 
unsatisfactory and lacks 
flexibility to manage 
multiple lettings. The 
Open Play system (see 
5.3.1) will be used to 
raise the invoices which 
will be signed by the 
Acting Headteacher.

The invoicing facility within SIMS should 
be used, which will alleviate the need for 
manual invoices to be produced and 
allow income received to be directly 
matched to the respective invoice.

All invoices (including the copy retained 
at the School) should be authorised by 
the Acting Headteacher.

N/A

T
udalen 107



REF & 
PRIORITY

ORIGINAL 
FINDING

ORIGINAL 
RECOMMENDATION

ORIGINAL 
MANAGEMENT 

RESPONSE

OUTCOME OF THE FOLLOW-UP AUDIT NEW 
MANAGEMENT                      

RESPONSE

Whilst it is accepted 
that the PTA can 
continue to help in the 
sale of School 
uniform, the School 
needs to ensure a 
member of School 
staff authorises the 
orders for ‘stock’.

An appropriate audit 
trail in respect of VAT 
should be kept.

Confirmed to have been partially 
implemented.

Management indicated this 
recommendation had been implemented in 
the initial audit report and when scoping 
this follow up review. Audit testing has 
confirmed that the recommendation has 
been partially implemented.

It was established that whilst all 
expenditure/income in relation to School 
uniform is for the School budget, members 
of the PTA continue to formally place 
orders to purchase School uniform, 
although it is accepted that the invoice for 
payment is now being signed by the 
Headteacher after receipt of the goods.

Agreed.

PTA suggest orders that are 
needed, they are authorised 
by the Headteacher and then 
placed by the school clerk.

ORIGINAL 
RESPONSIBILITY & 

TARGET DATE 

UPDATED RECOMMENDATION UPDATED 
RESPONSIBILITY & 

TARGET DATE

5.3.6

Medium

The School sell uniform to 
pupils/parents. To administer this, the 
School utilise the PTA, whereby, on a 
weekly basis members of the PTA open 
the uniform 'shop' and pupils/parents 
can purchase School uniform from 
them, with the income collected then 
passed to School staff for banking the 
following day.

It was established that whilst all 
expenditure/income in relation to 
School uniform is for the School 
budget, members of the PTA are 
formally signing School orders to 
purchase School uniform.

Additionally, whilst a list of daily sales 
and income is provided to the office by 
the PTA confirming what was sold, VAT 
is not always recorded correctly on 
these ‘returns’.    

Acting Headteacher

Business/Site 
Manager

31st October 2017

Stock orders to be 
authorised by the 
Business/Site 
Manager who will 
also check the 
income records to 
ensure that VAT is 
recorded correctly.

Whilst it is accepted that the PTA can 
continue to help in the sale of School 
uniform, the School needs to ensure a 
members of School staff place and 
authorises the orders for ‘stock’, and 
commit the School’s budget to the 
expenditure.

Headteacher

Implemented

T
udalen 108



5.4 SCHOOL PRIVATE FUND

REF & 
PRIORITY

ORIGINAL 
FINDING

ORIGINAL 
RECOMMENDATION

ORIGINAL 
MANAGEMENT 

RESPONSE

OUTCOME OF THE FOLLOW-UP AUDIT NEW 
MANAGEMENT                      

RESPONSE

The School should clarify 
the responsibilities in 
respect of the income 
collected for the School 
Private Fund.

This will help ensure 
consistent processes are 
maintained and eliminate 
any unnecessary 
duplication of work.

Confirmed to have been implemented.

Management indicated this recommendation 
had been implemented in the initial audit report 
and when scoping this follow up review. Audit 
testing has confirmed that the 
recommendation has been implemented.

Discussions at the school established that 
since the last review processes have been 
altered in relation to the fund. 

The Fund Secretary collects all income and 
updates the Excel daily income record, along 
with updating each trip record that the income 
is in relation to. The majority of income for the 
fund is now online payments.

In respect of expenditure, the Fund Treasurer 
administers all payments.

Not required as original 
recommendation 
implemented.

ORIGINAL 
RESPONSIBILITY & 

TARGET DATE

UPDATED RECOMMENDATION UPDATED 
RESPONSIBILITY & 

TARGET DATE

5.4.1

Medium

Two members of staff are 
currently involved in the 
administration of the Private 
Fund.

One member of staff collects 
the income on a daily basis, 
inputs the amounts on to 
Record of Daily Income, an 
Excel spreadsheet and other 
records. Then, at the end of 
each day, this income is 
passed to another member 
of staff who counts the 
income and inputs the 
amounts to a different Excel 
spreadsheet. She also pays 
any invoices in relation to the 
Private Fund. 

At the end of each week, the 
daily amounts collected are 
passed back to the original 
member of staff who once 
again counts the income 
prior to the income being 
banked.

There was no rationale as to 
why the Private Fund is 
administered by two staff, 
with each duplicating the 
work of the other.

Acting Headteacher

Business/Site Manager

School Fund Treasurer

31st October 2017

Responsibilities to be 
clarified and reported to 
the School Fund 
Management 
Committee.

The introduction in 
September 2017 of on-
line payments via the 
RCT Civica E-Store for 
all school business will 
reduce the amount of 
cash/cheque handling.

Not Applicable. Not Applicable

T
udalen 109



REF & 
PRIORITY

ORIGINAL 
FINDING

ORIGINAL 
RECOMMENDATION

ORIGINAL 
MANAGEMENT 

RESPONSE

OUTCOME OF THE FOLLOW-UP AUDIT NEW 
MANAGEMENT                      

RESPONSE

The School Private Fund 
ledger should contain 
details of all income and 
expenditure transactions 
on the same page to 
provide a meaningful 
analysis of accounts, and a 
running balance for 
reconciliation to the bank 
statements.  Appendix 2 of 
the School Private Fund 
Regulations provides notes 
of guidance for the 
completion of ledgers and 
a suggested format is 
included at Appendix 4 of 
these Regulations.

Confirmed to have been partially implemented.

Management indicated this recommendation had been 
implemented in the initial audit report and when scoping 
this follow up review. Audit testing has confirmed that the 
recommendation has been partially implemented.

Examinations established that Income and Expenditure 
transactions continue to be recorded on separate excel 
spreadsheets by the Fund Treasurer.

Discussions with the School Business Manager identified 
that an alternative Ledger has been created, which is in 
an appropriate format to include all income, expenditure 
and running balances. 

However, this Ledger had not been updated since the 
15th November 2017. Additionally, the Fund Treasurer 
was not aware it had been created for use.

Agreed.

Spreadsheet has been introduced 
which the Business Manager will 
amend in order to ensure 
compliance with School Private 
Fund Regulations.

ORIGINAL 
RESPONSIBILITY & 

TARGET DATE

UPDATED RECOMMENDATION UPDATED 
RESPONSIBILITY & 

TARGET DATE

5.4.2

Medium

The entries in 
respect of School 
Private Fund 
income / 
expenditure 
should allow for 
prompt 
reconciliation 
within each 
financial period.

Whilst a Ledger in 
the form of an 
excel spreadsheet 
has been 
introduced at the 
School, it does not 
follow the 
expected format:

 Income and 
Expenditure 
transactions are 
recorded on 
separate 
sheets.

 There is no 
running balance 
recorded.

Acting Headteacher

Business/Site Manager

School Fund Treasurer

31st October 2017

Systems to be 
revised to ensure 
compliance  with 
the regulations.

The School Private Fund ledger should contain details of 
all income and expenditure transactions on the same 
page to provide a meaningful analysis of accounts, and a 
running balance for reconciliation to the bank statements. 

Appendix 2 of the School Private Fund Regulations 
provides notes of guidance for the completion of ledgers 
and a suggested format is included at Appendix 4 of 
these Regulations.

The Fund Treasurer should be made aware of their 
responsibilities going forward.

Headteacher & 
Fund Treasurer

January 2019

T
udalen 110



REF & 
PRIORITY

ORIGINAL 
FINDING

ORIGINAL 
RECOMMENDATION

ORIGINAL 
MANAGEMENT 

RESPONSE

OUTCOME OF THE FOLLOW-UP AUDIT NEW 
MANAGEMENT                      

RESPONSE

A separate Record of Daily 
Income should be maintained 
by the School for the Private 
Fund and School Budget 
Account.

This form should be completed 
as and when the Treasurer 
receives any income, and 
supported by the signatures of 
the two persons involved.

The same process should be 
followed by the person 
responsible for receipting 
School income although a 
separate Record of Daily 
Income should be maintained.

When income is subsequently 
banked the amounts should be 
totalled and ruled off.

Confirmed to have been partially implemented.

The Headteacher indicated this recommendation had been 
implemented in the initial audit report and when scoping 
this follow up review. Audit testing has confirmed that the 
recommendation has been partially implemented, with 
Private Fund and School Budget income now administered 
separately.

However. whilst there is a central record of daily income 
maintained at the School, it was established that:

 It is not being updated as and when income is collected.
 No signatures are provided on this record as evidence 

of the amounts collected, as it is on Excel.

Additionally, whilst a receipt book is available to be used to 
issue receipts to people who are handing money over to 
the office staff, examination of the receipt booked showed 
that it is not used.

Agreed.

The school will attempt to 
implement a system where 
staff update the Record of 
Daily Income as money is 
received however it is not 
always possible for staff to 
stop their other duties in order 
to update the Record 
immediately.

ORIGINAL RESPONSIBILITY 
& TARGET DATE

UPDATED RECOMMENDATION UPDATED 
RESPONSIBILITY & 

TARGET DATE

 5.4.3

Medium

Whilst there is a 
central record of 
daily income 
maintained at the 
School, it was 
established that:

1. This record is 
used to record 
income 
received in 
respect of both 
the School 
Private Fund 
and School 
Budget  
Account. 

2. Only one 
signature is 
provided on 
this record as 
evidence of the 
amounts 
collected. 

Acting Headteacher

Business/Site Manager

School Fund Treasurer

31st October 2017

Systems to be 
revised to 
ensure 
compliance with 
the regulations.

The Record of Daily Income should be completed as and 
when the Fund Secretary receives any income, and 
supported by the signatures of the two persons involved.

Fund Treasurer

December 2018

T
udalen 111



REF & 
PRIORITY

ORIGINAL 
FINDING

ORIGINAL 
RECOMMENDATION

ORIGINAL 
MANAGEMENT 

RESPONSE

OUTCOME OF THE FOLLOW-
UP AUDIT

NEW 
MANAGEMENT                      

RESPONSE

The School should appoint an 
alternative auditor for the School 
Private Fund who is independent of 
the administration of the account. 

Additionally, the School needs to 
ensure the second auditor 
undertakes the full requirements of 
the auditor role, or look to appoint a 
new auditor.

A copy of the School Private Fund 
Regulations should be provided to 
the auditors to ensure they are fully 
aware of their roles.

Confirmed to have been 
implemented.

Management indicated this 
recommendation had been 
implemented in the initial audit 
report and when scoping this 
follow up review. Audit testing has 
confirmed that the 
recommendation has been 
implemented.

Discussions at the School 
established that two new auditors 
have been appointed since the 
last review, and they undertake 
the full requirements of the auditor 
role.

Not required as original 
recommendation implemented.

ORIGINAL RESPONSIBILITY & 
TARGET DATE

UPDATED RECOMMENDATION UPDATED 
RESPONSIBILITY & 

TARGET DATE

5.4.4

High

One of the fund auditors is the 
Business Manager, who has direct 
line management of the staff 
involved in the day to day running of 
the Private Fund. As a 
consequence, it is deemed that the 
Business Manager is not sufficiently 
independent of the running of the 
Private Fund.

Additionally, from discussions with 
the Business Manager, it was 
established that whilst the Private 
Fund has another auditor 
appointed, the auditor does not 
undertake the appropriate checks 
as required and highlighted within 
the Private Fund Regulations.

Finance and Buildings Committee

Implemented

New Auditors 
Appointed.

Not Applicable. Not Applicable

T
udalen 112



REF & 
PRIORITY

ORIGINAL 
FINDING

ORIGINAL 
RECOMMENDATION

ORIGINAL 
MANAGEMENT 

RESPONSE

OUTCOME OF THE FOLLOW-UP AUDIT NEW 
MANAGEMENT                      

RESPONSE

It should be ensured that the 
Fund Auditors have audited 
the account prior to them 
being presented to the 
Governing Body.

The Private Fund Annual 
Statement should be 
submitted to Education 
Finance within the 
timescales required.

Confirmed to have been partially implemented.

Management indicated this recommendation 
had been implemented in the initial audit report 
and when scoping this follow up review. Audit 
testing has confirmed that the 
recommendation has been partially 
implemented.

Whilst it is accepted that the Summary of 
Accounts Certificate had been submitted to 
Education Finance and presented to the 
School Finance Committee prior to the 31st 
December deadline, it was not presented to 
the Full Governing Body until the 14th 
February 2018.

Additionally, the Summary Breakdown on the 
Certificate was incomplete.

Agreed.

It will be ensured that the Annual 
Summary of Accounts for 2017/18 
are presented to the full Governing 
Body in the next meeting to be held 
on 14th November 2018.

ORIGINAL 
RESPONSIBILITY & 

TARGET DATE

UPDATED RECOMMENDATION UPDATED 
RESPONSIBILITY & 

TARGET DATE

5.4.5

Medium

The Annual Statement 
in respect of the School 
Private Fund was 
presented to the 
Governing Body in 
Autumn 2016, prior to 
the accounts being 
audited by the Fund 
Auditors.

In addition, the 
deadline for the 
submission of the 
Private Fund Annual 
Statement to Education 
Finance was the 31st 
December 2016.   The 
Annual Statement for 
the year ending 31st 
August 2016 was not 
returned until 27th 
February 2017.

Acting Headteacher

Business/Site Manager

Treasurer to School Private 
Fund

Implemented

This was an 
exceptional 
occurrence due to 
the whole school 
move and will not 
be repeated.

A fully completed Annual Summary of 
Accounts Certificate should be presented to 
the School‘s Full Governing Body prior to 
submission to Education Finance.

Headteacher & School Business 
Manager

November 2018

T
udalen 113



REF & 
PRIORITY

ORIGINAL 
FINDING

ORIGINAL 
RECOMMENDATION

ORIGINAL 
MANAGEMENT 

RESPONSE

OUTCOME OF THE FOLLOW-UP 
AUDIT

NEW 
MANAGEMENT                      

RESPONSE

The practice of pre-
signing a 'stock' of 
cheques should cease 
with immediate effect.

The School should 
enquire with the bank as 
to when the new 
signatories can be used.

Confirmed to have been implemented.

Management indicated this 
recommendation had been implemented 
in the initial audit report and when 
scoping this follow up review. Audit 
testing has confirmed that the 
recommendation has been implemented, 
with no pre-signed cheques present.

Not required as original 
recommendation implemented.

ORIGINAL 
RESPONSIBILITY & 

TARGET DATE

UPDATED RECOMMENDATION UPDATED 
RESPONSIBILITY & 

TARGET DATE

5.4.6

High

At the time of the Audit review, 
there were 8 pre-signed 
cheques present in the 
chequebook.

It was established that only 
one of the three named 
cheque signatories on the 
account is presently in School, 
restricting the School’s ability 
to process cheque payments.

The School have notified the 
bank of a new panel of 
signatories, but were awaiting 
the bank to authorise these.

Treasurer to School 
Private Fund

Implemented

This was an exceptional 
action covering the 
period between the 
resignation of the 
treasurer and changing 
of signatories to the 
bank account.

Not Applicable. Not Applicable

T
udalen 114



REF & 
PRIORITY

ORIGINAL 
FINDING

ORIGINAL 
RECOMMENDATION

ORIGINAL 
MANAGEMENT 

RESPONSE

OUTCOME OF THE FOLLOW-UP AUDIT NEW 
MANAGEMENT                      

RESPONSE

Bank statements 
should be reconciled to 
the fund ledger by an 
independent person.

The statements should 
be signed and dated by 
the person carrying out 
the reconciliation as 
evidence of when and 
by whom this was 
carried out.

Confirmed to have been partially implemented.

Management indicated this recommendation had been implemented in 
the initial audit report and when scoping this follow up review. Audit 
testing has confirmed that the recommendation has been partially 
implemented.

The Fund Treasurer now undertakes the bank reconciliation of the 
Private Fund. 

However, this person also administers the expenditure and undertakes 
the bankings on a day to day basis, and is therefore not considered 
independent. Additionally, discussions established that this reconciliation 
is undertaken by checking the bank statements to income and 
expenditure records maintained by the Treasurer and not to the Fund 
Ledger (which is not up to date as found in 5.4.2)

Additionally, following the previous audit review, the school opened a new 
Private Fund account so that weekly Loomis cash collections can take 
place. However, the school are yet to close the 2 old bank accounts.

Agreed.

Closure of the 2 old 
bank accounts will 
be carried out with all 
money transferred.

Business Manager to 
carry out Bank 
Reconciliation and 
sign on completion.

ORIGINAL 
RESPONSIBILITY & 

TARGET DATE 

UPDATED RECOMMENDATION UPDATED 
RESPONSIBILITY & 

TARGET DATE

5.4.7

High

Examination of the 
Private Fund bank 
statements 
revealed that 
whilst there were 
some evidence of 
reconciliation i.e. 
some transactions 
were ticked, there 
was no rationale 
to the process and 
no signatures and 
dates to confirm 
who undertook 
any checks.

The Business 
Manager stated 
that no formal 
Bank 
reconciliation 
exercise is 
undertaken.

Treasurer to School 
Private Fund

Business/Site Manager

Implemented

Reconciliation to 
be undertaken by 
the Business/Site 
Manager.

Bank statements should be reconciled to the Fund Ledger by an 
independent person.

The statements should be signed and dated by the person carrying out 
the reconciliation as evidence of when and by whom this was carried out.

The school also need to close the 2 old bank accounts and transfer the 
balances into the new account.

Headteacher & School 
Business Manager

January 2019

T
udalen 115



REF & 
PRIORITY

ORIGINAL 
FINDING

ORIGINAL 
RECOMMENDATION

ORIGINAL 
MANAGEMENT 

RESPONSE

OUTCOME OF THE FOLLOW-UP AUDIT NEW 
MANAGEMENT                      

RESPONSE

5.4.8

High

Records were requested for 
the Prague & Italy trips. 

Both sets of records were 
poorly maintained and did 
not provide the Auditor with 
sufficient information in 
respect of income and 
expenditure.

The Business Manager 
indicated that it is the 
responsibility of the Fund 
Treasurer to maintain 
records for trip income, 
however it is for the trip 
organisers to maintain and 
retain all other information.

In addition, section 9.1 of the 
School Private Fund 
Regulations states that:

 'Any member of staff 
running a School trip is 
required to draw up and 
provide the Treasurer with a 
statement of account within 
one month of the conclusion 
of the trip.  This must show 
details of all the receipts and 
payments relating to the trip 
which must be reconciled to 
the ledger'.

(CONTINUED)

The Acting Headteacher should 
ensure consistent practices are in 
place in relation to School trips, 
and all documentation retained 
and readily available. 

The Acting Headteacher should 
implement a Trip Information 
Pack which would include 
standard documentation upon 
which details of income received / 
expenditure incurred can be 
recorded. 
The pack should be provided to 
all staff at the planning stage of 
each trip with guidelines for them 
to strictly adhere to.

A statement of account should be 
prepared detailing income 
received and expenditure 
incurred at the conclusion of each 
trip and passed to the Fund 
Treasurer for retention. 

The statement should be signed 
and dated by the Trip organiser 
as confirmation of the amounts 
involved.

These records should be passed 
to the Treasurer at the conclusion 
of the trip and retained with the 
fund documentation for a period 
of six years.

Whilst there is a 
trip information 
pack available to 
staff in the school 
on-line handbook 
outlining the 
actions required 
as per these 
recommendations, 
adherence to the 
procedures 
included has been 
variable.

Staff training is 
planned designed 
to ensure 
compliance to the 
School Private 
Fund Regulations.

Confirmed to have been partially implemented.

Management indicated this recommendation had been 
implemented in the initial audit report and partially 
implemented when scoping this follow up review. Audit 
testing has confirmed that the recommendation has 
been partially implemented.

Trip Records were requested for three trips. It was again 
found that Trip Organiser and Office records were poorly 
maintained and did not provide the Auditor with sufficient 
information in respect of income and expenditure. 

The following issues were found for each trip examined: 
- 

Trip 1 25/1/2018

A Statement of Account has been completed, however, 
it is inaccurate. 

The income recorded on the Statement of Account is 
£170, however the Fund Treasurer had only received 
and banked £120 (as per the income record). The 
Treasurer couldn't explain the anomaly, however it was 
later discovered that the Trip Organiser still had £50 in 
the classroom to be banked, even though the trip had 
already taken place and the Statement of Account 
completed. 

Additionally, the Statement of Account states 
expenditure was £120, which was for a bus. However, 
there is a receipt attached to the records for £57.98 for 
items purchased on the trip, but this is not recorded on 
the Statement of Account. 

(CONTINUED)

Agreed.

A staff checklist 
with regard to 
good practice 
to be prepared 
and sent to all 
staff by 
Business 
Manager 
outlining 
requirements. 

Staff to ensure 
that all costs 
are covered by 
pupil 
contributions 
and any 
additional 
money left in 
the private fund 
due to over-
calculation is 
returned 
equally to each 
pupil where 
possible.

T
udalen 116



REF & 
PRIORITY

ORIGINAL 
FINDING

ORIGINAL 
RECOMMENDATION

RESPONSIBILITY 
& TARGET DATE

OUTCOME OF THE FOLLOW-UP AUDIT UPDATED 
RESPONSIBILITY & 

TARGET DATE

Trip 2 1/12/2017

No Statement of Account available.

Income collected was £2,100 and expenditure of £1,992.82, a profit of 
£107.18. This profit remains within the Fund account, with no refunds offered 
to the 18 pupils who attended.

Trip 3 1/12/2017

No Statement of Account available.

Income collected was £1,006 and expenditure of £1,160.45, a loss of 
£154.45.

ORIGINAL 
RESPONSIBILITY & 

TARGET DATE 

UPDATED RECOMMENDATION

Continued The Fund 
Treasurer stated 
that Statements 
of Account are 
not routinely 
prepared at the 
conclusion of any 
School trip.

Acting Headteacher

Business/Site 
Manager

Treasurer to School 
Private Fund

31st December 2017

Management should ensure consistent practices are in place in relation to 
School trips, and all documentation retained and readily available.

A Statement of Account should be prepared detailing income received and 
expenditure incurred at the conclusion of each trip and passed to the Fund 
Treasurer for retention. The statement should be signed and dated by the 
Trip organiser as confirmation of the amounts involved.

Trips must not make losses or be operated as profit making ventures. 

The school should review all trips over a determined period of time and 
where a trip has been operated and makes a profit, e.g. as a result of the 
over-calculation of the trip price or interest earned on these monies, the 
balance must either:-

i) be divided equally and paid back to each paying pupil, 

or;

ii) be retained by the private fund, providing that consent of the parents has 
been given.

Headteacher, All Staff 
& Fund Treasurer

December 2018

T
udalen 117



5.5 PURCHASE CARD

REF & 
PRIORITY

ORIGINAL 
FINDING

ORIGINAL 
RECOMMENDATION

ORIGINAL MANAGEMENT 
RESPONSE 

OUTCOME OF THE FOLLOW-UP 
AUDIT

NEW 
MANAGEMENT                      

RESPONSE

Transaction Logs 
should be introduced 
for each of the 
Purchase Cards held at 
the School.

All transactions should 
be promptly updated 
onto the Logs as and 
when they occur.

Confirmed to have been partially 
implemented.

Management indicated this 
recommendation had been implemented 
in the initial audit report and when 
scoping this follow up review. Audit 
testing has confirmed that the 
recommendation has been partially 
implemented.

Despite assurance given that the 
transaction logs for both Purchase Cards 
would be implemented, it was 
established that they have not been, with 
only one in place for one of the cards. 
Examination of this log also showed that 
it is not accurately being updated as and 
when transactions occur.

Agreed.

Transaction logs have been 
introduced and are being kept 
up to date by the Business 
Manager.

ORIGINAL 
RESPONSIBILITY & 

TARGET DATE

UPDATED RECOMMENDATION UPDATED 
RESPONSIBILITY & 

TARGET DATE

5.5.1

High

Section 6 of  the 
Cardholder Manual for 
Schools issued by 
Procurement Services 
states that:

'Each Purchasing Card 
transaction should be 
recorded on the 
transaction log as soon 
as the transaction is 
complete to ensure that 
no information is 
omitted'. 

The School has two 
purchase cards. Despite 
assurance given during 
previous reviews that 
the transaction logs for 
both Purchase Cards 
would be implemented, 
it was established that 
they have not been.

Acting Headteacher

Business/Site Manager

Implemented

2 files have been 
maintained which contain:

1. Paperwork relating to 
order/purchases made 
using the cards – pre-entry 
on SIMS.

2.
3. Paperwork transferred when 

SIMS is updated on receipt 
of the bank statement.

As outlined at the audit visit 
a separate transaction log 
was being maintained but 
was temporarily suspended 
due to the high additional 
workload involved in the 
whole school move.

This has now been revived.

Transaction Logs should be introduced 
for each of the Purchase Cards held at 
the School.

All transactions should be promptly 
updated onto the Logs as and when they 
occur.

Headteacher & 
Purchase Card Holders

Implemented

T
udalen 118



REF & 
PRIORITY

ORIGINAL 
FINDING

ORIGINAL 
RECOMMENDATION

ORIGINAL 
MANAGEMENT 

RESPONSE 

OUTCOME OF THE FOLLOW-
UP AUDIT

NEW 
MANAGEMENT                      

RESPONSE

It should be ensured 
that receipts/invoices 
are retained for all 
purchases. Where a 
receipt is not 
obtained, an 
expenditure without 
receipt form should 
be completed.

Confirmed to have been partially 
implemented.

Management indicated this 
recommendation had been 
implemented in the initial audit 
report and when scoping this 
follow up review. Audit testing has 
confirmed that the 
recommendation has been 
partially implemented.

For a sample of transactions 
relating to both Purchase Cards, a 
sample of purchases were 
examined and receipts could not 
be located to support the 
following: -

AG Card
 30/11/17 - Pizza Express - £200
 20/11/17 - Cartridge Save - 

£45.53

Agreed.

There is now only one 
purchasing card and all 
receipts, invoices and other 
information concerning the 
transaction is kept. If a situation 
arose that there was no receipt 
then an ‘Expenditure without 
Receipt’ form is completed and 
signed.

ORIGINAL 
RESPONSIBILITY & 

TARGET DATE

UPDATED RECOMMENDATION UPDATED 
RESPONSIBILITY & 

TARGET DATE

5.5.2

High

For a sample of transactions relating to both Purchase 
Cards, a sample of purchases were examined and 
receipts could not be located to support the following: 
-

DT
Date Transaction Description £

26/04/2016  Makro £59.69
13/09/2016  The Flower Pot £28.50
21/10/2016  www.printertree.co.uk £96.00
02/02/2017  M&S £51.00
09/03/2017  Flower power £33.00

£268.19

AG
Date Transaction Description £

26/04/2016  Hostels Amenta S.L. £671.25

26/05/2016  The Flowerpot £25.00

05/07/2016  Travelex Uk Ltd £1,040.22

16/09/2016  www.glee.co.uk £227.50

04/10/2016  The old vic moto £350.50

03/11/2016  Cadbury World Retail £250.90

13/12/2016  Poundland £53.00

14/12./2016  Crabtree & Evelyn £38.00

17/02/2017  vueling airlines £42.19

13/12/2016 Poundland £53.00

14/12/2016 Crabtree & Evelyn £38.00

17/02/2017 vueling airlines £42.19
£2,831.75

Acting Headteacher

Business/Site 
Manager

Implemented

The high additional 
workload work 
involved in the 
whole school move 
meant that copies 
were not 
centralised into 
primary purchasing 
card file.

Copies will be 
centralised 
henceforth. 

It should be ensured that 
receipts/invoices are retained for 
all purchases. Where a receipt is 
not obtained, an expenditure 
without receipt form should be 
completed.

Headteacher

Implemented

T
udalen 119



REF & 
PRIORITY

ORIGINAL 
FINDING

ORIGINAL 
RECOMMENDATION

ORIGINAL 
MANAGEMENT 

RESPONSE 

OUTCOME OF THE FOLLOW-UP 
AUDIT

NEW 
MANAGEMENT                      

RESPONSE

Purchases such as those identified 
should, in future, be avoided.

All potential expenditure should be 
subject to challenge by the Acting 
Headteacher to ensure that the School 
can demonstrate value for money and 
that funds have been utilised in a 
prudent manner, taking into 
consideration the Schools deficit 
budget.

Purchases such as flowers for gifts 
would be more suitably financed by a 
staff collection.

Confirmed to have been partially 
implemented.

Management indicated this 
recommendation had been 
implemented in the initial audit report 
and when scoping this follow up 
review. Audit testing has confirmed 
that the recommendation has been 
partially implemented, as it was 
identified that the cards are being 
used to purchase alcohol for the 
Christmas OAP Party (although it is 
accepted that income had been 
collected for the Party).

Agreed.

This has ceased as a result of the audit.

ORIGINAL RESPONSIBILITY & 
TARGET DATE

UPDATED RECOMMENDATION UPDATED 
RESPONSIBILITY & 

TARGET DATE

5.5.3

High

Examination of the 
Purchase Card 
expenditure for the 
2016/17 financial 
year identified the 
following instances 
of expenditure 
amounting to 
£1,272.78 which are 
deemed 
inappropriate/ 
unnecessary.

Acting Headteacher

Business/Site Manager

Implemented

This is noted and 
will be avoided in 
the future.

The purchasing of alcohol should 
cease, with it being ensured only 
purchases appropriate to the school 
budget are made using the Purchase 
Cards.

Headteacher & 
School Business Manager

Implemented

T
udalen 120



REF & 
PRIORITY

ORIGINAL 
FINDING

ORIGINAL 
RECOMMENDATION

ORIGINAL 
MANAGEMENT 

RESPONSE

OUTCOME OF THE FOLLOW-UP AUDIT NEW 
MANAGEMENT                      

RESPONSE

A signing in/out record needs to 
be maintained when other 
members of staff use the 
Purchase Cards to provide an 
audit trail of expenditure and to 
identify by whom purchases 
were made.

Confirmed to have been partially implemented.

Management indicated this recommendation had been 
implemented in the initial audit report and when 
scoping this follow up review. Audit testing has 
confirmed that the recommendation has been partially 
implemented.

Whilst there were Signing Out/In sheets for each 
Purchase Card available at the school, examinations 
identified that the sheets are not routinely completed. 

It was also found that the sheets only contain the 
name, date taken and date returned, and they are 
being completed by the School Business Manager 
and not the persons obtaining the cards.

Agreed.

A sign out sheet will be 
maintained by the Business 
Manager for any member of 
staff who uses the purchase 
card.

ORIGINAL RESPONSIBILITY 
& TARGET DATE 

UPDATED RECOMMENDATION UPDATED 
RESPONSIBILITY & 

TARGET DATE

5.5.4

High

The cardholders 
confirmed that 
other members of 
staff utilise their 
Purchase Cards. 

A record of this is 
not maintained.

Acting Headteacher

Business/Site Manager

Implemented

Actioned.

It should be ensured that appropriate Signing Out/In 
sheets for each Purchase Card are always completed 
when the card is used by any other member of staff 
other than the cardholder.

Headteacher & School 
Business Manager

Implemented

T
udalen 121



REF & 
PRIORITY

ORIGINAL 
FINDING

ORIGINAL 
RECOMMENDATION

ORIGINAL 
MANAGEMENT 

RESPONSE

OUTCOME OF THE FOLLOW-UP 
AUDIT

NEW 
MANAGEMENT                      

RESPONSE

It should be ensured 
that cashbook journals 
are promptly 
undertaken on SIMS 
once the transaction 
log has been 
reconciled to the 
Purchase Card bank 
statements.

Confirmed to have been implemented.

Management indicated this 
recommendation had been 
implemented in the initial audit report 
and when scoping this follow up review. 
Audit testing has confirmed that the 
recommendation has been 
implemented, with Cashbook Journals 
now undertaken on a timely basis.

Not required as 
original 
recommendation 
implemented.

ORIGINAL 
RESPONSIBILITY & 

TARGET DATE

UPDATED RECOMMENDATION UPDATED 
RESPONSIBILITY & 

TARGET DATE

5.5.5

Medium

All purchase card transactions are confirmed via a 
monthly statement received on the 3rd of each month. 
In order for SIMS to replicate the School Bank 
Statement, a cashbook journal should be undertaken 
on receipt of the Purchase Card Bank Statement. 

Examinations established that there are delays in the 
updating of SIMS Cashbook Journals with purchase 
card transactions. These were: - 

Date of B/Statement - 3/4/2016
Cashbook Journal - 6/6/2016

Date of B/Statement - 3/5/2016
Cashbook Journal - 24/6/2016

Date of B/Statement - 3/6/2016
Cashbook Journal - 3/8/2016

Date of B/Statement - 3/7/2016
Cashbook Journal - 10/8/2016

Date of B/Statement - 3/8/2016
Cashbook Journal - 20/9/2016

Date of B/Statement - 3/10/2016
Cashbook Journal - 29/12/2016

Date of B/Statement - 3/11/2016
Cashbook Journal - 25/1/2017

Date of B/Statement - 3/12/2016
Cashbook Journal - 1/3/2017

Date of B/Statement - 3/1/2017
Cashbook Journal - 6/3/2017

Date of B/Statement - 3/2/2017
Cashbook Journal - 15/3/2017

Date of B/Statement - 3/4/2017
Cashbook Journal - 1/6/2017

Acting Headteacher

Business/Site Manager

Implemented

The high additional 
workload 
associated with the 
whole school move 
meant that some 
SIMS updates 
were undertaken 
late.

Every effort will be 
made to updates 
SIMS in a timely 
manner henceforth. 

Not Applicable. Not Applicable

T
udalen 122



REF & 
PRIORITY

ORIGINAL 
FINDING

ORIGINAL 
RECOMMENDATION

ORIGINAL 
MANAGEMENT 

RESPONSE

OUTCOME OF THE FOLLOW-UP AUDIT NEW 
MANAGEMENT                      

RESPONSE

The bank statements 
should be signed and 
dated by the person 
carrying out the 
reconciliation as evidence 
of when and by whom this 
was carried out.

Confirmed to have been implemented.

Management indicated this recommendation 
had been implemented in the initial audit report 
and when scoping this follow up review. Audit 
testing has confirmed that the recommendation 
has been implemented, with all statements now 
signed to confirm who undertook the 
reconciliation.

Not required as original 
recommendation 
implemented.

ORIGINAL 
RESPONSIBILITY & 

TARGET DATE 

UPDATED RECOMMENDATION UPDATED 
RESPONSIBILITY & 

TARGET DATE

5.5.6

Medium

Bank statements are received 
monthly and are retained in the 
purchase card files. 

There is evidence on the bank 
statements of reconciliation, i.e. 
transactions are numbered to 
correspond to the receipt (where 
one is present), notes have been 
made alongside the transactions 
and transactions ticked.

However, they are not signed and 
dated as confirmation as to who 
and when these reconciliations 
were undertaken. Acting Headteacher

Business/Site Manager

Implemented

Noted. 

This will be 
actioned 
henceforth.

Not Applicable. Not Applicable

T
udalen 123



5.6 PURCHASING

REF & 
PRIORITY

ORIGINAL 
FINDING

ORIGINAL 
RECOMMENDATION

ORIGINAL 
MANAGEMENT 

RESPONSE

OUTCOME OF THE FOLLOW-UP 
AUDIT

NEW 
MANAGEMENT                      

RESPONSE

5.6.1

High

Requisitions are completed and 
signed by the budget holders, 
and are taken to office to 
process. The order is then 
raised on SIMS. The SIMS 
orders are then signed by the 
budget holder.

The following issues were noted 
in respect of the School’s 
purchasing arrangements: - 

 Requisitions are not always 
completed prior to being 
raised on SIMS, with an 
occasion noted whereby the 
budget holder had not 
authorised the SIMS order.

 Orders are not always raised 
on SIMS prior to receipt of the 
subsequent goods/invoices 
even though a prior request 
would have been made, and 
are therefore treated as non-
order invoices.

 Occasions were identified 
whereby Delivery Notes 
showed no evidence of being 
checked to the order placed 
and also not signed or dated.

 Invoices are not always being 
signed by an authorised 
budget holder prior to 
payment.

To avoid additional work, 
invoices for non-orders e.g. 
utilities, should be paid via the 
purchase card where possible. 

If the School is unable to use 
the purchase card, and a prior 
request is known for goods / 
services, an order should be 
raised on SIMS in the first 
instance and authorised by the 
budget holder in accordance 
with the revised and updated 
School Financial Procedures as 
per 5.2.1.

If an order was placed via 
telephone, an order should be 
raised as soon as possible 
thereafter. 

Once the goods / services are 
received, the delivery note 
should be checked against the 
original to order to ensure that 
the goods received agree to 
what was originally ordered. 
The order and delivery note 
should demonstrate evidence 
of this check (e.g. items ticked) 
and the delivery note should be 
signed and dated by the person 
undertaking this check.

Agreed

Now that the whole 
school move has 
settled down these 
actions will be 
followed.

Confirmed to have not been 
implemented.

Management indicated this 
recommendation had been 
implemented in the initial audit report 
and partially implement when scoping 
this follow up review. Audit testing has 
confirmed that the recommendation 
has not been implemented.

The following issues were once again 
noted in respect of the School’s 
purchasing arrangements: -

 Requisitions are not always 
completed prior to being raised on 
SIMS, with an occasion noted 
whereby the budget holder had not 
authorised the SIMS order.

 Orders are not always raised on 
SIMS prior to receipt of the 
subsequent goods/invoices even 
though a prior request would have 
been made, and are therefore 
treated as non-order invoices.

 Invoices are not always being 
signed by an authorised budget 
holder prior to payment.

 There are a large number of non-
order invoices being processed via 
SIMS, whereby a prior request for 
purchase would not have been 
required.

Agreed.

The Business Manager 
and the School Clerk 
responsible for orders will 
undertake a review of 
which invoices would be 
best to pay with the 
purchasing card.T

udalen 124



REF & 
PRIORITY

ORIGINAL 
FINDING

ORIGINAL 
RESPONSIBILITY 
& TARGET DATE

UPDATED RECOMMENDATION UPDATED 
RESPONSIBILITY & 

TARGET DATE

Continued  There are a large number of 
non-order invoices being 
processed via SIMS, whereby a 
prior request for purchase would 
not have been required.

Acting Headteacher

Business/Site 
Manager

Implemented

To avoid additional work, orders/invoices should be paid for via the 
purchase card where possible.

If the School is unable to use the purchase card and a prior request is 
known for goods / services, an order should be raised on SIMS in the 
first instance and authorised by the budget holder in accordance with 
the revised and updated School Financial Procedures as per 5.2.1.

If an order was placed via telephone, an order should be raised as 
soon as possible thereafter.

Once the goods / services are received, the delivery note should be 
checked against the original  order to ensure that the goods received 
agree to what was originally ordered. The order and delivery note 
should demonstrate evidence of this check (e.g. items ticked) and the 
delivery note should be signed and dated by the person undertaking 
this check.

Headteacher & School 
Business Manager

January 2019

T
udalen 125



REF & 
PRIORITY

ORIGINAL 
FINDING

ORIGINAL 
RECOMMENDATION

ORIGINAL 
MANAGEMENT 

RESPONSE

OUTCOME OF THE FOLLOW-UP 
AUDIT

NEW 
MANAGEMENT                      

RESPONSE

Subject to the 
implementation of 5.2.1, the 
list of approved signatories 
should be updated.

Once the panel of 
signatories has been 
updated as required, a copy 
of the bank mandate should 
be retained at the School for 
reference purposes.

Confirmed to have not been 
implemented.

Management indicated this 
recommendation had been 
implemented in the initial audit report 
and when scoping this follow up review. 
Audit testing has confirmed that the 
recommendation has not been 
implemented with the current list of 
cheque signatories continuing to be out 
of date and still includes the previous 
Headteacher.

Agreed.

A new bank mandate has been 
sent to RCT which will remove 
all previous signatories and add 
the current members of staff 
who need to be signatories.

ORIGINAL 
RESPONSIBILITY & 

TARGET DATE 

UPDATED RECOMMENDATION UPDATED 
RESPONSIBILITY & 

TARGET DATE

5.6.2

High

The current list of cheque 
signatories is out of date 
and includes the previous 
Headteacher. 
Additionally, signatories 
are listed but do not have 
delegated authority to 
incur the school to 
expenditure (refer to 
5.2.1).

Acting Headteacher

Business/Site Manager

Implemented

Signatories now 
updated and mandate 
retained.

 

The list of approved signatories should 
be updated.

Once the panel of signatories has been 
updated as required, a copy of the 
bank mandate should be retained at 
the School for reference purposes.

Headteacher & School Business 
Manager

Implemented

T
udalen 126



REF & 
PRIORITY

ORIGINAL 
FINDING

ORIGINAL 
RECOMMENDATION

ORIGINAL 
MANAGEMENT 

RESPONSE 

OUTCOME OF THE FOLLOW-UP AUDIT NEW 
MANAGEMENT                      

RESPONSE

Pending orders should be 
reviewed on SIMS on a 
regular basis and a note 
made on the copy order to 
confirm the same. This will 
allow outstanding orders 
which are no longer 
required to be identified at 
an early stage and 
corrective action taken.

Confirmed to have not been implemented.

Management indicated this 
recommendation had been implemented in 
the initial audit report and when scoping 
this follow up review felt that the current 
practices in place would be sufficient. Audit 
testing has confirmed that the 
recommendation has not been 
implemented with a large number of 
purchase orders outstanding, some dating 
as far back as November 2016.

The School Business Manager confirmed 
that pending orders are not routinely 
reviewed or chased up by the School, with 
them only looked at once a year.

Agreed.

The Business Manager will liaise 
with the School Clerks to 
regularly check the number of 
pending orders and to review 
whether they are still required.

ORIGINAL 
RESPONSIBILITY & 

TARGET DATE

UPDATED RECOMMENDATION UPDATED 
RESPONSIBILITY & 

TARGET DATE

5.6.3

Medium

A report of outstanding 
Purchase Orders was 
obtained from SIMS.  
This identified a large 
number of orders 
outstanding, some 
dating as far back as 
July 2016. 

This review has 
confirmed that pending 
orders are not routinely 
reviewed or chased up 
by the School. They 
are only pursued if / 
when the budget 
holder queries any 
outstanding items, or 
at the end of financial 
year when trying to 
balance SIMS.

Acting Headteacher

Business/Site Manager

Implemented

Agreed

Now that the whole 
school move has 
settled down these 
actions will be 
followed.

Pending orders should be reviewed on 
SIMS on a regular basis and a note made 
on the copy order to confirm the same. 

This will allow outstanding orders which 
are no longer required to be identified at an 
early stage and corrective action taken.

School Business Manager

November 2018

T
udalen 127



REF & 
PRIORITY

ORIGINAL 
FINDING

ORIGINAL 
RECOMMENDATION

ORIGINAL 
MANAGEMENT 

RESPONSE 

OUTCOME OF THE FOLLOW-UP AUDIT NEW 
MANAGEMENT                      

RESPONSE

Prior to renewing any of 
these leases, and taking out 
any future leases, 
authorisation should be 
obtained from Education 
Finance before entering into 
any formal agreement.

Confirmed to have been implemented.

Management indicated this recommendation had 
been implemented in the initial audit report and 
when scoping this follow up review. Audit testing 
has confirmed that the recommendation has been 
implemented.

Not required as original 
recommendation 
implemented.

ORIGINAL 
RESPONSIBILITY & 

TARGET DATE

UPDATED RECOMMENDATION UPDATED 
RESPONSIBILITY & 

TARGET DATE

5.6.4

Medium

There are 
currently four 
leases at the 
School relating to 
alarms, two 
minibuses and 
photocopiers.

The Business 
Manager stated 
that prior approval 
was not sought 
from Education 
Finance. Acting Headteacher

Business/Site Manager

Implemented

This will be actioned 
henceforth.

Not Applicable. Not Applicable

T
udalen 128



5.7 ASSETS

REF & 
PRIORITY

ORIGINAL 
FINDING

ORIGINAL 
RECOMMENDATION

ORIGINAL 
MANAGEMENT 

RESPONSE

OUTCOME OF THE FOLLOW-UP AUDIT NEW 
MANAGEMENT                      

RESPONSE

A full inventory should be 
compiled as soon as 
possible on SIMS. 
Thereafter, an annual 
review should be carried 
out to ensure that the 
record is accurate and 
up-to-date.

Any new assets / 
disposals should be 
recorded on the inventory 
as and when they occur, 
with any disposals 
authorised by the Acting 
Headteacher, with 
evidence of these 
authorisations retained.

Confirmed to have been partially implemented.

Management indicated this recommendation had been 
implemented in the initial audit report and had not been 
implemented when scoping this follow up review. 
However, Audit testing has confirmed that the 
recommendation has been partially implemented.

Whilst progress has been made with details obtained 
for the Science department and I.T. equipment (and 
also an original list of items in each room obtained from 
the contractors for when the new school building 
opened). However, these are individual documents and 
need to be reviewed/merged, along with all other areas 
within the School.

Agreed

The Estates Manager will 
(along with the caretaking staff) 
compile a School Inventory 
which will then be reviewed 
annually.

ORIGINAL 
RESPONSIBILITY & 

TARGET DATE

UPDATED RECOMMENDATION UPDATED 
RESPONSIBILITY & 

TARGET DATE

5.7.1

Medium

The School Inventory 
was last updated in 
November 2016. On 
examination it was 
established that the 
inventory was not 
accurate, with items that 
were disposed of when 
the School relocated to 
the new building still 
recorded.

It was also established 
that the inventory is not 
reviewed annually, and is 
not produced using SIMS 
as required.

Acting Headteacher

Business/Site Manager

31st December 2017

Agreed

Work is in 
progress to 
update the 
inventory.

A full inventory should be compiled as soon as possible 
on SIMS. Thereafter, an annual review should be 
carried out to ensure that the record is accurate and up-
to-date.

Any new assets / disposals should be recorded on the 
inventory as and when they occur, with any disposals 
authorised by the Acting Headteacher, with evidence of 
these authorisations retained.

Estates Manager

March 2019

T
udalen 129



REF & 
PRIORITY

ORIGINAL 
FINDING

ORIGINAL 
RECOMMENDATION

ORIGINAL 
MANAGEMENT 

RESPONSE 

OUTCOME OF THE FOLLOW-UP AUDIT NEW 
MANAGEMENT                      

RESPONSE

Where equipment is taken off 
site, a record should be 
maintained containing the date 
of removal, item of equipment, 
serial number, name of the 
person removing it and the 
date it was returned.

Confirmed to have not been implemented.

Management indicated this recommendation 
had been implemented in the initial audit 
report and had not been implemented when 
scoping this follow up review. Audit testing 
has confirmed that the recommendation has 
not been implemented.

The School Business Manager confirmed 
that there continues to be no log maintained 
to document details of the equipment leaving 
the premises or being returned.

Agreed.

The Estates Manager and the 
caretaking team will maintain a 
register of items of equipment 
which are disposed of or 
removed from the site for 
repairs and log their return.

ORIGINAL RESPONSIBILITY 
& TARGET DATE

UPDATED RECOMMENDATION UPDATED 
RESPONSIBILITY & 

TARGET DATE

5.7.2

Medium

The School 
Business Manager 
confirmed that no 
log is maintained to 
document details of 
the equipment 
leaving the 
premises, or being 
returned. 

Acting Headteacher

Business/Site Manager

31st December 2017

System will be 
introduced.

Where equipment is taken off site, a record 
should be maintained containing the date of 
removal, item of equipment, serial number, 
name of the person removing it and the date 
it was returned.

Estates Manager

December 2018

T
udalen 130


	Agenda
	2 Cofnodion
	4 Swyddogaeth Yswiriant y Cyngor
	5 Swyddogaeth Rheoli Trysordy y Cyngor
	6 Menter Twyll Genedlaethol
	7 Cyflawniad Archwilio Mewnol
	8 Aseiniadau Archwilio Mewnol Terfynol

